S6l Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

{Figure In Aupees Lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Notes As al As at As at
[
articufarg No. March 31, 2019 March 3t, 2018 April 01, 2017
ASSETS
¥ Financial Assets
(a} Cash and cash equivalents 5 46.716 53 25,273.85 17,472 19
(b} Bank Balance uther than iay above 6 4,325.96 3,520.66 10,822 45
{c) Derivative Finarciaf nsiruments 7 10.35 - -
(1) Receivables
(1) Other Receivables 8 29,403 56 14,884 .85 13,247 82
(e} Loans g 1.790,872.72 1,404,553 96 998,285 03
(f} Investnent 10 146.31 g 010
{9} Other Financ-al assels 3 1,110 69 517.79 24711
Total financial assets 1,872,586.12 1,448,751,22 1,040.074.70
2 Non-financlal assets
{a) Deferred tax cssets (Net) 13 15,863.10 8,215.21 12,846 01
{b} Property plar and equipment 14 511.94 468 55 361.41
(c) Other non Financial assels 15 70,418 77 48,984 711 21,118.27
Total nen-financial assets 86,793.81 57,668.47 34,325.65
Total Agsets ( 1+2) 1,959,379.93 1,506,419.69 1,074.400.39
—_—— —_——at —_——t e e
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabtlities
1 Financial liabitities
(a} Derivative linancial mnstruments 16 10,953.47 28537
{h) Payables 17
(I} Trade payables
(i} Iotal.uulstandlng dues of micro anlerprises and small 0.19 15 50 107.00
enterprises
{ii) 101l outstang ng dues of creditors ather than micro 50,837.79 39,414 10 11,773.92
enleiprises and small enterprises
(I} Other payables
(i} total oulstanding dues of micro entarprises and small
enterprises
(i) :otal_ouls!and.ng dues of c_redllors other than micro 68.63 798 20 52
enlerprises and small enterprises
(¢} Debt Securities 18 407.931,56 294,892 60 750,978.17
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 19 820,087.58 730534 .48 19724 35
{2} Suboardinaled Liabilities 20 119,679 85 99,803.74 53 889.65
{f} Other linancial liahilitias 21 95,802 49 64,507 73 28.842 95
Total financial liabilities 1,513,361.56 1,229,461.50 865,342,57
2 Non- financial liabitities
{a) Current Tax liabilities [ Nty 12 8,070.52 1,191 26 14336
{b) Provisions 22 £4,902 76 41,588 61 A9.521 42
() Other non lnancial liabisties 23 54302 63 31,131 39 1.1 340 an
Tolal non financial liablilities 127,275,91 73,911.26 64,035.67
Total liabilities ( 1+2) 1.640,637.47 1.303.372.76 929,378.24
3 Equity
{7) Equily Shara capital 24 83,722 22 78,500 00 78.500 00
{b) Other equity 25 ) 235,020 24 124,546 93 66 522 15
Total equity 318,742,416 203,046.93 145,022.15
Total fiabilities and equity (1+2+3) 1.959,379.93 1.506.419.69 1.074,400.29
See accompanying noles to the financial statements 110 59
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Statement of Prolit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Figure in Rupeas Lakhs, unfeas atherwise staled)

. Note For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars no. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

1 Revenue from Operalions

(i} Interest Income 363.427.39 279,767.75
{il} Income from membership fees and services 307,203 69 217,726 .66
i} Service Charges

12,305.74 7,796 54
(iv) Busingss development incentive income 21,667 28 16,264.02
{v) Insurance cammission income 872 57 72753
{vi)  Nel gain an fair value changes 26 10.35 o
Total Revenue from operalions 705,487.02 522,302.50
Ry Sy
2 Other Incomea 27 27,547 41 17.875.03
J  Tolal Income {1+2) 733,034.43 540,181.53
4 EXPENSES
{i) Finance costs 28 100.383 99 70.603.35
(i} Employee benelits expenzes 29 15,693 20 12.539.05
(i)  Depreciation, amortisation and impawrmenl 30 155 37 119.28
(v} Qperating and other expenses 3 3J85,338.84 282.995.11
(v} CSA expenses 32 1,263.27 908.67
(vi} Impairment losses & bad debts 33 108,557 95 B3.672.44
Total expenses §11,392.62 45&@
5 Profit beflore tax (3-4) 121.641.81 88,943.63
G Tax expense: 34
Current tax charge / {credit) 50.279.13 27.578.41
Current tax charge / {credit) - pravious year 133.42 (1.452.77)
Deferred tax charge / (credil) {7.525.65) 3.167.80
Deferred tax charge / (credit) - previous year (24.27) 151912
Tolal Tax Expenses 42.862.63 30.812.65
7 Profit alter tax for the year {5-6) 78,779.18 58,130.98
i e e
8  Other Comprehensive Income
A i) items thal will not be reclassilied 1o profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of the deflined benefl iabilities / (asset) 6.55) 1162.41)
{ii} Income tax relal “ig to dems that will not be reclassilied o profit or loss 229 56 21
Subtotal (A) {4.26) {106.20)
B {i) Items that will be reclassitied 1o profil or loss
ia) Gaini{loss) on forward contracls in hedging relationship 21.76
{ii} Incorme tax refating 1o items that will be reclassified t9 profit or loss (7 60)
Subtotal (B} 14.18 -
Other comprehensive income { A+B ] 9.9 { 106.20!
9 Total Comprehensive Income for the year {7+8) 78,789.08 58,024.78
10 Earnings per equity share {for continuing operation); A5
(1) Basic 3B TH
@) Cliluted G361 TH
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 110 59

As per our report of even date altached
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended Mar For the year ended Mar 31,
Particulars 31, 2018 2010
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 78,779.18 58,130 98
Adjustments for :
Tax expensa 42,862.63 30,81265
Depreciation and amortisation axpense 155.37 11528
Liabilities wrilten back (107.91) (156.66)
fmpairment Joss and provision for doubtiul debis 120,504.85 83,773 53
Other Interest Income (427.12) {343.17)
Finance Cost 100,383 99 70,603 35
Loss on sale of Fixed Assels 6.28 16 30
Profit on sale on investments (38.30) (53 72y
Fair valuation of derivatives (10.35) 285 37
Operating profit before working capital changes 342.108.62 243.187.91
Adjustment for changes in working capital
Adjustrnents for {increase) / decrease in Operating assels:
Cther Receivables {13,983 68) (1.137.21)
Other financial assels (592.90) (270.68)
Other non financial assets {21,059.30) (28,360 88)
Loans (494,876.71) (489,941.37)
Adjustments for increasa 7 {decrease} in operating liabilities:
Other financial liabilitias 23,751.69 30,106.68
Other non financial liabilitias 23,171.24 16,790.50
Provisions 1,141.21 1,251,77
Trade payables 19.469.03 27,530.14
Cash from/ (used) in operations (120,870.80) {200,843.14)
Finance Cost Paid (88.910.47) {69.018.62)
Cash from/ {used) in operations before taxes (209,781.27) (269,861.76)
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (43.532.10) (24,613.34)
Net cash generated/ (used)in operaling activities {253,313.37) (294,475.10)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on propenty, plant and equipment (207.00) {342.29)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.96 99.56
Investment purchased (76,646.21) (143,000.00}
Investment sold 76,538 30 143053 72
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) {312 95) {189 01}
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 522222 .
Proceeds from securities premium 41,777 78 -
Debil Securities 149,445 09 [452.112.16)
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securilies) 89,553 10 710810.13
Subordinated Liabilities 19,876 11 45,914 09
Interim Dividend Paid . {9,448 08)
NET CASH (USED)/ GENERATED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 275,874.30 295,163 98
D. Nel increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 22,247.98 499 87
Cash and bank balances as at the beginning of the period 28,794.51 28,294.64
Cash and bank balances as at the end of the periad 51,042.49 28,794.51
22,247.98 499.87

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
For S. Ramanand Aiyar & Ca. $BI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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R. Balasubramanian
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5Bl Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, uniess olherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital
Number of

Amaunt
shares
Balance as at April 01, 2017 7.850.00 78,500.00
Changes n equity share capital dunng the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 7.850.00 78,500.00
Balance as at April 01, 2018 7.850.00 78,500.00
Changes in equity share capdal dunng the year 522.22 5.222.22
Balance as at March 3t, 2019 8,372.22 83.722.22
B. Other Equity Reserves and Surplus acl
Securities S
Particulars Capital reserve Premium S General reserve Reta}ned sl Total
reserve earnings Cash flow
reserve
hedges
Balance as al April 01, 2017 4136 = 32,037.55 476.61 33,966.63 - 66,522.15
Adaition - - 7,262.59 41,36 58,130.98 = 65,434.93
Other comprehensive Income, net of mcome laxes - o - - {106.20) c {106.20)
Translerred from Profa and Loss Account & 20%: . . - {7.262.59) - {7,262.59)
Transierred lo General Reseve {41.36) g - - S - (41.36)
Balance a3 at March 31, 2018 - - 39.300.14 517.97 84,728.02 - 124.546.93
Batance as at April G1, 2018 - - 39,300.14 517.97 84,728.82 - 124,546.93
Addition - 41.777.78 15,755.84 - 78,779.18 14.16 136,326.96
Other comprehensive income, net of ncome laxes - . (4.26) - 4.26)
intenm equity dividend . - . {8,372.62) - (8,372.62)
Tax on Inienm equity Daidend - - - §1,720.93) - {1.720.93)
Tranzlened from Profd and Loss Account & 207 - - {15,755.84) B {15,755.84)
Balance as at March 3%, 2019 - 41,777.78 55.055.9_3_ 517,97 137.654.35 14.16 236.020.24

For and on behaif of the 8oard of Directors ol
SBi Cards and Payment Services Private Limited

R. Balasubramanian Managing Direclor & CEO Direcior el Fingpeial

Partner ON: 0 Qe 29303 o of/o 2910

Membership No. ; 080432

As per our report of even dale attached
For S. Ramanand Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

Firm Registration No. :000980N
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Company overview

SBI Card and Payment Services Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a non-deposit accepling
systemically important non-banking financial company (‘NBFC-ND-SI') registered with the
Reserve Bank of India {'RBI'). The Company was incorporated as a joint venture between
State Bank of India and GE Capital Mauritius Overseas Invesiment. On 15th December 2017,
GE Capita! Mauritius Overseas Investments sold its entire 40% stake in the company to State

Bank of India (14%) and CA Rover Holdings (26%). The Company is engaged in issuing credit
cards to consumers in india.

On October 6, 1998, the company received a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to carry on the
business of a Non-Banking Financial Institution without acceptance of public deposits.
Accordingly, all provisions of the Reserve Bank Act 1934 and all directions, guidelines or
instructions of the RBI that have been issued from time to time and are in force and as
applicable to a Non-Banking Financial Company are applicable to the company.

The company also acts as corporate insurance agent for selling insurance policies to credit
card customers. The company has been granted license on 01 March 2012 by the Insurance
Regulatory & Development Authority (IRDA) under the Insurance Regulatory & Development

Authority (Insurance brokers) regulations, 2002 to act as a corporate insurance agent, valid up
lo March 31, 2019,

During the year ended March 2019, Company has issued two tranches of listed debentures

which are listed on Bombay stock exchange (BSE). This was first ever listed issuance by the
Company.

The company has filed a joint petition seeking to merge “SBI Card and Paymenl Services
Private Limited" ("SBICPSL") and “SBI Business Process Management Services Private
Limited” (“SBIBPMSL"), the back end entity engaged in the business of inter alia rendering
credit card processing and business process management services to the transferee company
SBICPSL, with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), New Delhi which is
pending adjudication. Refer note 53 for details.

Application of new and revised Ind AS

On March 30,2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116
will replace Ind AS 17 and related interpretations from its proposed effective date, being
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognized assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The
Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. The company is in the
process of evaluating the financial impact of the Ind AS on its financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
issued amendments 1o the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution laxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall
recognise the income lax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive

income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or
events.
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3.1.

3.2,

3.3.

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after Aprit 1, 2019,
The company is currenily evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Amendment fo Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or seltlement- On March 30, 2019, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employes Bensfils', in connection with accounting
for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements requiring an entity lo use updated assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interast for the remainder of the pericd after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss

on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of
the impact of the asset ceiling.

Eifective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019.The
company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is
to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under
Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax
authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax freatments, that tha companies have used or
plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or

the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (lax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.
Basis of preparation and compliance with IND-ASs

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Upto the year ended March 31, 2018, the company
prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, which
includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014, as amended,
and the relavant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(collectively,” Ind ASs") with effect from April
1,2016. These are the first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2017,
Refer Note 54 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the company.

Basis of preparation of financial statement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Accounting palicies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounling

standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in uss.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conlormity with the tinancial reporting framework applicable
to the Company requires management to make eslimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reponting period.
Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful debts and estimated useful lifa of Tangible
Assets. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial
stalemenis. Any changes in estimates are recognised prospectively. Refer Note 4.16 for critical
estimales and judgements applied in preparation of financizl statements



4.1.

4.1.1.

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
{Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

The Company’s operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues such as
finance income on financial assets i.e. loans advanced, membership fee earned, transaction
révenue earned on interchange including target incentives offered by interchange partners.
Other fee and charges include cheque bounce charge, late tees, over limit fees etc. The
company also earns income from investments made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government, Revenue is recognised to the extenl that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,

regardless of when the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed are net of returns, trade
discounts, rebates, value added laxes.

Effective April 1, 2018, the company has applied Ind AS 115 which eslablishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be
recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.

The company has applied Ind AS 115 retrospeclively with the cumulative effect of initial
application recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at April
1, 2017. In accordance with the transition guidance in Ind AS 115 has only been applied to
coniracls that are incomplete as at April 1, 2017.

The company's accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail below. Apart
from providing more extensive disclosures on the company’s revenue transactions, the
application of Ind AS 115 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and/or
financial performance of the Group. The amount of adjustment for each financial statement
line item affected by the application of Ind AS 115 tor Ihe current period is given in note 36.

Financing income

Interest income includes interest income on dues from credit card holders and on EM} based
advances.

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those classified as held
for trading or designated at fair value are recognised in ‘Interest income’ and ‘Finance

expense’ in the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method. Interest on
impaired financial assets is adjusted for loss allowances.

Income from membership fees and services

The company sells credit card memberships to card holders, income earned from the
provision of membership services is recognised as revenue over the membership period

consisting of 12 months at fair value of the consideration net of expected reversals/
cancellations.

Other service revenue consists of value-add services provided to the card holders. Other

révenues are recognised in the same period in which related lransactions occur or services
rendered.

o



4.1.5,

4.1.6.

4.1.7,

4.1.8,

4.2,

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

. Interchange Income

Interchange fees are collected from acquirers and paid to issuers by network partners to
reimburse the issuers for a portion of the costs incurred for providing services that benefit all
participants in the system, including acquirers and merchants. Revenue from interchange
income is recognised when related transaction occurs, or service is rendered.

Business Development Incentive

The Company enters into long-term contracts with interchange partners for various programs
designed to build payments volume, increase product acceptance. Revenue recognition is
based on estimated performance and the terms of the business arrangements.

Other Service Fees and Insurance Income

Other services fees and insurance income are recognised in the same period in which related

transactions occurs or services rendered at fare value of consideration net off expected
reversals/cancellations.

Income from Investments

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Excess of sale price over purchase price of mutual fund units is recognised as income at the
time of sale,

Unidentified receipts & Stale cheques

The total unidentified receipts which could not be credited or adjusted in the customers’
accounts for lack of complete & correct information is considered as liability in balance sheel.
The estimated unidentified receipts aged more than 6 months and up to 3 years lowards the
written off customers is wrilten back as income on balance sheet dale. Furiher, the unresolved

unidentified receipts aged more than 3 years are also wrilten back as income on balance
sheet date,

The liability for stale cheques aged for more than three years is written back as income.

Recovery from bad debts

Recovery from bad debts written off is recognised as income based on actual realisations
from customers.

Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis. Expenses incurred on behalf of other companies,
for sharing personnel, etc. are allocated to {hem at cost and reduced from respective expense

classifications. Similarly, expense allocation received from other companies is included within
respective expense classifications.



4.3.

4.4.

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Any expenditure which is directly attributable to borrowing is capitalized
and amortised over the life of borrowing loan. Borrowing cost also include exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), all assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has
applied Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment prospectively to new acquisitions beyond

transition date and considered the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed costin
accordance with Ind AS 101 First Time adoption.

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of
purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and
related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assels. When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their respective useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the

decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective assel if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit & loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation /
under development as at the balance sheet date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusied prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value using the
useful lives of the assels estimated by management and in the manner prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, The useful life is as follows:

Description Useful Life
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Office equipment

Computers & Computer Equipmens
Owned Vehicies

~! 2T W Lh

Leasehold Improsement
Compuler Server 0




SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Improvements of leasehold Property are depreciated over the period of the lease term or
useful life, whichever is shorter.

Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated over the lease term or useful lite,
whichever is shorter,

4.5.  Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets: Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The Company has considered the carrying amount as on transition date as deemed cost in
accordance with Ind AS 101 First Time adoption.

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software, recognised at cost and amortised at the rate

of 20%-50%, which represents the period over which the Company expecls to derive the
economic benefits from the use of the asset,

4.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether thers is an indicalion that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the assel's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less cosls of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does nol generate cash inflows thal are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company's assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds

its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is wrilten down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecls current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are considered, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Company also regularly assesses
collectability of dues and creates appropriate impairment allowance based on internal
provision matrix. Impairment losses including impairment on inventories are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the assel over its remaining useful life.
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Financial Instruments

Inilial Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent Recoanition

Non -derivative financial instruments

Financial Assels

Einancial assels are carried at amortized cost using Effective Interest rate method (EIR):

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial assat give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Effective Interest Rate {EIR) method:

The effeclive interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the expected life. Income is recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss on an elfective interest rate basis for financial assets other than
those classified as at FVTPL.

EIR is determined at the initial recognition of the financial asset. EIR is subsequently updated

for financial assets having floating interest rate, at the respective reset date, in accordance
with the terms of the respective contract.

Once the terms of financial assets are renegoliated, other than market driven interest rate
movement, any gain/ loss measured using the previous EIR as calculated before the

modification, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in period during which such
renegotiations occur.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss:

| 1



SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair
valued through profit or loss.

However, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election for particular
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through

profit or loss, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income,

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of

similar financial assels) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's
statement of financial position) when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass through” arrangement and either:

e the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assels
or

* the Company has relained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the

financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
mare recipients,

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has

transferred substantially afi the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. In
such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.

Where the entity has not transferred subslantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the Company has neither
transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained controf of
the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

fn accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL} model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit
risk exposure;

* Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

* Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCIy;

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
receivables from contract with customers;

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporling date, right
from its initial recognition. the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss

12



(n

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward

looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed defaylt rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognilion. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. i, in
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12- months ECL.

Write off policy:

Loans are written off when the company has no reasonable expectation of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). A write oft constitutes a derecognition
event. The company applies a policy of writing off accounts which are overdue for 191 days or

more from payment due date. Recoveries resulting from the company’s enforcement activities
will result in impairment gains.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
methed.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially difierent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financiai instruments such as foreign exchange forward
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.
The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The
counter-party to the Company's foreign currency forward contracts is generally a bank. The
company has derivative financial instruments which are not designated as hedges.

Any derivative that is not designated as hedge is categorized as a financial asset or financial
liability, at fair value through profit or loss account.

Hedging

At the inceplion of a hedge relationship, the company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the company wishes lo apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company designates
certain foreign exchange forward contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign
exchange exposure on booked exposures. The documentation includes the company's risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic

RRANDZS
Y % 13



4.8,

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statcments

relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio
and how the enlily will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair

value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedqe

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value and are re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates. The company designates only the change in fair value of the forward contract

related to the spot compenent as the hedging instrument. The forward points of the currency
forward contracts are therefore

hits profit or loss.

When a hedged transaction occurs or is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain

or loss recognized in cash flow hedging reserve is transierred to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously,

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assels or

the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assels, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements into prior to transition date, the Company has determined whether the

arrangement contain lease based on facts and circumstances existing on the date of
transition.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the
lease at the inception date at fair value of the leased asset o, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining batance
of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss, uniess they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with Company's general policy on the borrowing cost.

\?‘0\ 14
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable cerlainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the

asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimaled useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

All leases other than finance lease are classified as operating lease. Operating lease
Payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss account on straight
line basis over the lease term, unless the paymenis are struclured to increase in line with the
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor in expected inflationary cost increase.

Income-tax expense

Current Tax

Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
or recovered from the laxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates
and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating 1o item recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity). Current tax

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in
equily.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the lax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused lax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible lemporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all
or part of the deferred lax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-
assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Delerred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized, or the liability is setlled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement of
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or direct in equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) recognizes MAT credit availabie as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed lo be carried forward. The
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and wriles down

the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal
tax during the specified period.

Foreign currency

Functional currency

llems included in the financial stalements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’), the Company's

financial statements are presented in Indian rupee which is also the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency,
using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the balance sheet date

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
Iranslated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary

items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dale when the fair value is determined.”

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as

Income or expense in the period in which they arise with the exception of exchange

item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or
profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or prolit or loss, respectively.

Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset/
liabifity

' _:. JF’ :Iof:l 16
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monelary benefits thal are expected 1o be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of employee service uplo the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amaunt expected to be paid when the liabilities are seltled,
the liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations
Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust
maintained with SBI Life insurance Company limited. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity
Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance
sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Company Gratuity Scheme.
The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year
end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is
caiculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. the
Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-roitine settlements

* Net interest expense or income

* Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which

they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods."

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense

paid. if the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution dye for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excesses recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.



SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Long Service Award

The Company's long service award is defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations
under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of

service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit enlittement and measure each unit
separately 1o build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securilies as at Balance Sheet date, having
maturily periods approximating to the terms of related abligations.

Compensated Absences

Accumulaled leaves which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months is treated as short
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as lhe
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement and is discharge
by the year end. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to
be availed within one year from the balance sheet date is recognized based on undiscounted
value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be
availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or
expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated based on

an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The company has a policy on compensaled absences which is by way of accumulating
compensated absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated by taking into
consideration of availment of leave. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming
due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet date is recognized
based on undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or eslimated value of
benefit expecled to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect ol compensated
absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet

date is estimated based on an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

National pension scheme (NPS)

4.12. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is tomputed using the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year,
except where the results would be anti-dilutive.
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit aitributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during
the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is compuled by dividing the net profit attributable
to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding equity shares)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event
that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a

possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources,

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outtlow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change accurs.

Provision for reward points redemption

The Company has a reward point program which allows card members to earn points based
on spends lhrough the cards that can be redeemed for cash, gift vouchers and retail

redeem their points and creates provisions to cover the cost of future reward redemptions.

The liability for reward points outstanding as at the year-end and expected to be redeemed in
the future is estimated based on an actuarial valuation.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, funds in
transit lying in nodal account of intermediaries/payment gateway aggregators and highly liquid
investments with maturity period of three months or less from date of investment

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Revenue Recognition; Application of the various accounting principles in Ind AS 115 related to
the measurement and recognilion of revenue requires us to make judgments and estimates.
Specifically, complex arrangements with nonstandard terms and conditions may require
significant contract interpretation to determine the appropriate accounting. We consider

various factors in estimating transaction volumes and estimated marketing activities target
fulfilment, expected behavioural life of card etc.

Estimation of business development incentives relies on forecasts of payments volume, card
issuance etc. Performance is estimated using, transactional information - historical and
projected information and involves certain degree of future estimation.
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Estimation of card life relies on behavioural life trend established basis past customer
behaviour / observed life cycle

Differences between actual results and our estimates are adjusted in the period of actual
performance

Management is required to assess the probability of loss and amount of such loss w.rt. legal
proceedings, if any, in preparing of financial statements

Property, Plant and equipment: The company reviews the eslimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. The lives are based on historical

experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
life, such as change in technology.

Impairment of financial assets: A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL such as;

» Eslablishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL
(Portfolio segmentation)

» Defining default
* Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk.

* Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for measurement of ECL.

) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

¢ In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish he
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

* Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value of various assets and iiabilities are disclosed in note 31

* Al assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level

= Input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities,

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

RAND
Pt e --{4’)-\
e \f_”%\. 20
i DJ ) ..I 'I
£l g \o
:.I(;- E i EL H ; ,-'I S _.'|
z(\o_}'_r



(1X)

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

» For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on ihe lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

The cost of reward point includes the cost of future reward redemption which is determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may ditfer from actual developments in the future.

Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity): The cost of the defined benelit graluity plan and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part ol the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As al March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Batance wilh banks {of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
Current Accounts

Funds in transit (Lying in nodal account of intermediaries/payment galeway
aggregators)

Total

6. Bank Balance other than (5) above

Particutars

659 50 514.30 73029
46,057.03 24,759.55 1574190
46,716.53 25,273.85 17.472.19

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Earmarked balances with bank*

TOTAL
(") Earmarked balances represents excess balances from customers and unidentifie
7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Assets)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

d receipts kept in a separate bank account.

As at March 31, 2018

4,325 96 3.520.66 10.822 45
4,325.96 3,520.66 10.822.45
e ——— =Y E e —————————— ) —_——l e

As at Aprit 01, 2017

Part |

(1) Currency Derivatives
-Spot and lorwards

Total

Part I
(i) Cash Flow hedging
-Currency derivalives

Total
{ Refer note ng. 37 )

8, Other receivables

Particulars

1035

10.35

1035

10.35

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

To be realised within twelve months after reporting date:
Recelvables considered good
- Unsecured

Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk

Total- Gross

To ba reatised alter twelve manths alter reporling date:
Receivabies considered good

- Unsecured

Total- Gross

Less:
‘Impairment loss allowance

Total- Net

The average credit year on sales ol services is 30-60 days. No

receivables and unbilled revenue.

21,068.70 8,204 33 9,330 78
62.89 103 28 5521
21,121.59 8,307.61 9.385.99
833486 6,680 53 391704
8,334.86 6,680.53 3.917.04
(62 89} (103.28) 155 21)
25,403.56 14,884.86 13,247.82

Of the total receivable VISA and Master Card accounts tor 4295 in 201 8-19, 73% in 2017-18 & 69% 1n 2016-17

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

interast is charged on trade receivables from the date of the invoice
Company manages its credit risk fram customers from credit approvals, establishing credit limits and mon;

uses a provision matrix taking into account historical experience and available imernal and external risk fact

As at March 31, 2018

Balance at teginning of the year

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated al
litetime expected credit losses

Balance at end of the year
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{103.28} {55.21}
40.39 (48.07)
{62.89) {103.28)

toring credit worthiness of its customers, The Company
0rs 10 compule expected credit loss altowance fos other



5BI Cards and Payment Services Private Limlted
Notes forming part of the financial statementsa

{Flgure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}
9. Loans

At Amortized Cost

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

(A)
Loans & advances to customers
- To ba realised within twelve months aftar reporling date
- To be realised after twelve months after reporting date
Total (A} Grosas
Less:
Impairment loss allowance

Total (A)- Net

8
(i) Secured by llien on fixed deposils and financial guarantees
{il) Unsecured

Total (B} Gross

Leas:

‘Impaiment loss allowance

Total (B)- Net

(C) Loans In Indla
(i) Public sector
{i}) Others
Total (C}- Gross
Less:
Impairment loss allowance
Total {C)- Net

(D)
()Standard Advances
Less ; - Impalrment loss allowance

Total

(il) Sub-standard Advances

Less : - Impairment foss allowance
Total

Total (D}- Net

10. Investments

Particulars

1,659,863.04

1,322,691.42 965.822.88
192,766.31 134,288.50 64,696.78
1,852,629.35 1,456,979.92 1,030,519.67
(61.756.63) (52,425.96) (32,234.64)
1,790,872.72 1,404,553.96 598,285.03
24,781.11 26,293.29 28,166.71
1,827,848,24 1,430,686.63 1,002,352.96
1,852,629.35 1,456,979.92 1,030,519.67
61,796.63 (52.425.96) (32.234.64}
1,790,872.72 1,404,553.96 998,285.03
224.16 666.88 114.67
1.852,405.19 1.456.293.04 1,030.405.00
1,852,629.35 1,456,979.92 1,030,519.67
{61,756.63) {52.,425.96) (32.234.64)
1,790,872.72 1.404,553.96 998,285.03
1,807,334.46 1,415,730.23 1,006,429.44
{31,643.35) (24,651.94) (15,877.65)
1,775,691.11 1.391,078.29 990,551.79
45,294.09 41,249.69 24,090.23
{30.113.28) (27,774.02) (16,356 99}
15,181.61 13,475.67 7,733.24
1,780,872.72 1,404,553.96 998,285.03

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

At Amortized Cost

nvesiment to be realised after twelve months after the feporting date
-Equity instruments

010

Q.0 010
At Fair Value through Other Comprehenslve Income
Investment to be realised allar twelve months after the reporting data
-Equity instruments 146.21 -
Total 146.31 .10 0.10
During the ysar ending March 31, 2019, the company has purchased and sold the uriits of Mutual Funds, the details of which are as follows -
Fund Name Units Purchase Amount Sale Amount
Axls Liquid Fund 138,022.38 3,500.00 3,501.67
HDFC Liquid Fund 542,979.63 19,500.00 19,514.26
ICICI Liguid Fund 10,198,137.02 27,500.00 2751373
Reliance Liguid Fund 147,529.39 6,500.00 6,502.76
S8 Premler Liquld Fund £693,183.18 19,500.00 19,505.88
Total 11,719,851.61 76,500.00 76,538.20
The delai's of units purchased and sotd during the previous year 2017-18 's as
Fund Name Unlts Purchase Amount Sale Amount
Axis Liquid Fund 3,589,262.21 66,500.00 66,528.83
HDFC Liquid Fund 785,283.59 26,000.00 26,006 21
ICICI Liguid Fund 12,786,569.18 31,500.00 31,511,30
SBI Premlar Liquid Fund 715,075.02 19.000.00 18.007.37
Total 17,876,190,01 143,000.00 143,053.72
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
11, Other Flnancial assets

Partlculars

As at March af1, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

To ba reallsed after twalve months after raporting date:
-Security deposits

- Unsecured, considered good
Fixed Deposits (under lien for guaranteas)

Total

12. Current Tax Liabilitles/Assets {Net)

Particulars

583.69

490.79 24511
§27.00 27.00 2.00
1,110.69 517.19 247.11

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Tax liabllity{Net)

To ba seltled within twalve months afiar reporting date:
-Provision for tax
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13. Deferred Tax Assels (Net)

Particulars AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,  As at April 01,
articular 2019 2018 2017

To be adjusted alter twelve months alter reporiing date:

-Deferred tax asset 15,863.10 8,215.21 12,846.00

Total 15,663.10 821521 12,846.01

For the linancial year 2018-19

Recognised in Reclassified from Liabilities associated
Panticulars Opening balance Recognised in other Recognised equity ta profit and Acquisitions / with assets classified Closing balance
9 profitand loss  comprehensive directly in equity e disposals  as held for sale {note
income 21}

Deferred tax (liabilitiesYassels in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment 14,41 8.83 - B 23.24
Membership & Processing lee 7,338.84 3.065.81 . . - 10,304.65
Provision tor expenses 2,479 30 33.07 - . . - 2,512.38
Stalf benelits and stautory dues 217 40 19.26 2.8 - . - 238.93
Far Va'ue of Dervatve {60.19) 6018 (7.60) . . . #em
Delerred revenue 12.312.00) 2,312,050 . . E . - -
Amortisalion of card acquistion ciosi |12 .854,94) 17,434.42) . - . - {20,289.38)
Provesions 7.97 - - = 7.97
Prowision for doubtiul debls & EGL 13,479.06 9.642.36 - - = - 22,121.43
Delined bonelit obigaion - = = . -
Debl Issue expenses {B6.67) {61.86) - - - - - {148.53)
QOlher knancial kabifities = = = = E s = -
Total 8,215.21 7.653.21 {5.32) - = = - 15,863.10

There 1s no unrecogrised deduciable temnporary diferences.

For the tinancial year 2017-18

Recognised in Reclassified from Liabilities associated
Particulars Opening batance Recognised in other Recognised equity to prafit and Acquisitions /  with assels classified Closing balance
prafitand loss  comprehensive direcily in equity loss disposals as held lor sale (note
income 21)
Delerred 1ax {liabilitlies¥assets in relation to:
Property, planl and equipment 9 60 5.40 - - - - - 14.91
Membershep & Processing feg 5.248.19 2.090.65 S . S S S 7.338.84
Provision lor expenses 5.315.6% {2,836.38) . . - . - 2,479.30
Stalf benelis and staviory dues 161 62 (0.44) 56.21 - . . - 217.40
Farr vatuation of dervalives (60,19} - - - - . 60.19)
Deterred revenue (1,355.69) {956 .29} B - - - - {2,312.00)
Amortisation of card acquishiod cost {3.815.19) {7,039.75) . - - - {12,854 .94)
Provisiuns . - - - - .
Provision lor doubtful debts & ECL 9,352 47 4,126.59 - - B - - 13,479.06
Delined benelif obkgation - - . - - . -
e Debt Issue expenses {7016} (16.51) = = . - - (BG.67)
Toral 12,846.01 (4,687.01) 58,21 - - - - 8,215.21
— ‘4/}:.?
\‘%ﬂ There s no unrecognised deductabie tarmporary ditferences
¥
=Lh fy E2
F e f
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Noles forming part of the tinancial statements.
{Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

14. Property, plant and equipment

Particulars As al March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2019 2018 2007

Carrying amounts of:
Fumuture & Fidurg 17.18 16.52 23.26
Ctlice equipmen 1928 6.78 1.70
Owned Vetucles 7.66 - 8.89
Computer 794 029 200
Leasehold improvements 10015 101.48 129.92
Venictes on Finance Leass 38052 34344 195.64
Total 51 ‘IL ﬂ a61.41
14.1 Property Mani and Equipments-Cost

Furniture & L hold Vehi on
Particulars. Firtura Qffica equiy . Qwned Vhicles Compules Improvements Finance Leasa Total
Balance at Aptil 01, 2017 23.26 1.70 8.89 2.00 129.92 185.64 36141
Additions 6.73 N - - - 328.15 3229
Dalations {11.66) 1.31} (8.89) {1.45) {8.29) {102.38) {135.08)
Balance at March 31, 2018 18.13 7._82 - 0.55 121.53 420.41 568.62
14.2 Property Plant and Eq ip Accumulaled Dep

Fumiture & 1 Vahi, on

P o

Particulers Fixtura Otfice equipment Owned P tinpr Finance Leass Tota)
Balance at April 01, 2017 5 5 - - . . .
Depreciation dusing tha period 282 1.23 127 0.62 20.05 93.30 118.28
Eliminated on wisposals of assels {1.01) {0.21) {1.27) {0.36) . {16.37} {19.22)
Balance at March 31, 2018 1.81 1.02 - 0.26 20.05 76.93 100.07
Net book value as on March 31, 2018 16.52 6,78 - 0.29 101.48 343.48 468.55
14.1 Property Piant and Equipments-Cost

Fumiture & Leasshold Vehicles on
Particulars Fixturg Otfice equipment Quned Vehicles Camputer impravements Finance Lease Total
Balance at April 01, 2018 18.33 7.80 - 0.55 121.53 420.41 568.62
Addiions 8.15 15.98 a.09 8.06 2085 144 86 207.00
Delehons [7.49) (1.05) - (0.55) - {3.48) {12.57)
Balance at March 31, 2019 19.99 22.74 8.09 8.06 14238 561.79 763.05
14.2 Property Plant and Equipments-Accumulated Depreciation

Furniture & Leasehold Vehicl
Particulars Fixture Office equipment Owried Vehicles Camputer improvements. Finance Lease sl
Balance a! April 01, 2018 1.81 1.02 - 026 20.05 76.93 100.07
Depraciation dunng the pesind 1.83 255 0.43 0.95 2218 127.43 155.37
Elminated on disposals ol assets {084} {0.11) - {029} . {3.09) {4.33}
Balance at March 31, 2019 2.60 3.46 ad_..l 0.92 4223 20t.27 251,194
Mot book value as on March 31, 2019 1719 19.28 7.66 7.14 100.15 360.52 511.

There has been no impairment losses recognised duitng the year and no assets pledged as sectny



SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements
{Flgure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
15, Other non Financlal assets

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

To be realised within twelve montha after reporting date;

-Service tax / GST recoverable

(Service tax recoverable includes Pre-depoasits for appeal and Show cause

natices-refer note - 46)
- Unsecured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Total {A}- Gross
Less:

‘Impairment loss allowance
Total (A)- Net

{reter note no.52)

-Prepald expensas
-Unamortised Card acquisition cost
-Other advances
- Unsecured, considerad good
- Unsecured, considered doubtiul
Less:
'Impalmment loss allowance
Total (B)- Net

To be realised afler twelve months after reparting date:
-Unamortised Card acquisition cost
-Advance Income tax {net of provision}

Total (C}- Net

Total (A+B+C)

16, Derlvativa Financlal Instruments {Llabittles)

7.260.43

5,823.81 602.22

11,946.91 . .
19,207.34 5,823.81 602.22

{11,945.91) . .
7,260.43 5,623,681 602.22
1,040.53 1,774.08 532,72
9,236.35 £.278,33 4,094.06
1,225.71 1,787.57 231.03
.18 7.33 0.50
(9.16) {7.33) (0.50)
11,502.59 9,639.98 4,857,891
48,828.15 30,866.08 12,708.96
2,829.60 2,454,84 2,949.28
51,655,756 33,020.92 15,650,24
70,418.77 38,904.71 21,118.27

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at Aprif 01, 2017
Part |
(1} Currency Derivatlves

-Spot and forwards 10,953,47 285,37 .
Total 10,853.47 285.37 -
Part | (a)
(1) Cash Flow hedging

-Currency detivatlves 10,953.47 285.37
Total 10,953.47 285.37 -
(Refer note no. 37)
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statementa
{Flgure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17. Payables

Partleulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Payahla within twelve months after reporting date:
{I) Trade payables

{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises

(.19 15.50 107.00
{Ii) total outstanding dues of crediors athar than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 58,837.79 39,414.10 11,779.92
Total (A) 58,837.98 39,429.60 11,886.92
Payable within twelve months after reporting date:
(M) Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(a) otal cutstanding duss to amployeas €8.63 7.98 2.69
{b) latal outstanding dues 1o capital creditors - - 17.83
Total (B) §8.63 7.98 20.52
Total (A+B) 58,906.61 39,437.58 11,907.44

(*) Average credit period is 30 to 120 days Irom the date of sarvices renderad and no Interest is due on outstanding balances as at reporting dale, The company has
financial risk managemant policies in place to ensure that al| payable are paid within the pre agreed credit tarms

17.1 Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisea Development Act, 2006

In terms of notification dated De.
follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

ptember 4, 2015 [ssued by the Central Government of India, the disclosure relaled fo trade payables as at the end of the year are as

As at April 01, 2017

(i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year

(i} Interest dua thereon remaining unpald lo any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year

(iii} Tha amount of intarast paid along with the amounts of the payment mads to
the suoolier bevond the aooointed dav

{iv) The amount of inlarast due and payable for the year

(¥) The amount of interest accrued ang remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounling year

{vi) The amount of further interest dus and payable even in the succeeding year,
until such data when the interest dues as above are actually paid

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have bean determined to tha extent such
This has been refied upon by the auditors.
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15.50

107.00

parties have been identilled on the basis of information collected by the Management.



SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18. Debt Securities
At amortized cost

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
(A
(i) Commercial paper
- To be settled within twelve months after reporting date; 211,984.32 233,910.48 750,978.17
(i} Debentures
- To be settled after iwelve months afier reporting dale; 195,947.24 60,982.12
Total (A) 407,931.56 294,892.60 750,978.17
(B)
Debt Secuiities in India 407,931.56 294,892.60 750,978.17
Debt Securities outside India S - -
Total (B) 407,931.56 294,892.60 750,978.17

18.1 Details of non-convertible debentures (NCD)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

9.15% Unsecured NCD of As 1,000,000 each (Redeemable al parin Jun'22})
8.10% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each {Redeemable at par in May'21)
9.5% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Oct'20)

7.55% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable al par in Aug'20)
8.90% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in May'20)

Total
Ammortization Expense
Total

45,000.00 - -
11,000.00 11,000.00 -
50,000.00 - -
50,000.00 50,000.00 -
40,000.00 . *
196,000.00 61,000.00 e
(52.76) {17.88) -
195,947.24 60,982.12 N
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19. Borrowings (other than debt securities)

As at April 01, 2017

Particulars As at March 31, 201% As at March 31, 2018
A
At amortized cost
(a) From Bank {Related Party)
Secured Loans (Refer note 19.1 below)
(i) Working capital loans
- To be settled within twelve months after reporting date; 605,568.42 633,025.52 19,527.94
(i) Foreign currency working capital loans
- To be seitled within twelve months after reporting date; 131,686.82 97,200.59 -
{b) From Bank {other than Related Party)
Secured Loans (Refer note 19.1 below)
(i} Working capital loans
- To be settled within twelve months after reporting dale; 82,496.88 - -
(c} Finance lease obiigations®
- To be sefiled within iwelve months after reporting date; 92.26 85.44 78.17
- To be setlled after twelve months after reporting date; 243.20 222.93 118.24
*(Secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles taken on linance lease)
Total (A) 820,087.58 730,534.48 19,724.35
(B)
Borrowings in India 820,087.58 730,534.48 19,724.35
Borrowings outside India - - -
Total (B} 820,087.58 730,534.48 19,724.35
Note 19.1 Secured by
Primary Security Colleteral Security Repayment terms Guaranteed by Details of Default

First Charge on entire current First Charge on entire fixed assets of

assets of the company (present the company (present and future), -
and future) incl. Hypothecaltion of excluding vehicles financed by other Within 12 months N.A. N.A.
Receivables. institutions.

As on date of Balance sheel, Company has not defaulted on any interest and repayment of borrowings




S§Bl Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20. Subordinated Liabilities

Parliculars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Unsecured non-convertible debentures
- Redeemable within twelve months aiter reporting date; and 4,999.05 4,997.10 3,997.30
- Redeemable after twelve months afier reporting date; 114,680.80 94,806.64 49,892.35
Totai (A) 119,679.85 99,803.74_ 53,889.65
(B)
Subordinated liabilities In India 119,679.85 99,803.74 £3,889.65
Subordinated liabilities cutside India -
Total (B) 119,679.85 99,803.74 53,889.65
20.7 Details of non-convertible debentures
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
9.55% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Jan'29) 25,000.00 - -
8.10% Unsecured NCD of As 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Oct'23) 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
8.30% Unsecured NCD of As 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in May'23) 50,000.00 50,000.00 -
9.65% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Hedeemable at par in Apr'22) 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
9.00% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Nov'21) 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
9.50% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Sep'19) 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
9.85% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemabie at par in Mar'19) - 5,000.00 5,000.00
9.95% Unsecured NCD ol Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Jan'18) - - 4,000.00
Total 120,000.00 100,000.00 54,000.00
Ammortization Expense {320.15) (196.26) {110.35)
Total 119,679.85 99,803.74 53,889.65

i1



SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)
21, Other flnancial Hablilties

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Payable within twelva month alter reporting year:
Interest accrued but nat due 14,562.54 7.019.47 1,461.38
Cther liabilitles 621.24 524.68 39348
Payabia to Network Pariners 66,668.45 43,443 67 18,713.29
Excess amount trom Card holders 13,950.26 13,518.91 8,274.83
Total 95,802.49 64,507.73 26,842.96
22. Provislons
Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 Ag at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Employee Benelits
{!) Liabillties 10 be settled within twelve months after reporting date
- Provision for compensated absence 113.76 94.13 76.92
- Provision for gratuity 190.53 645,99 319.87
- Provislon for long service awards 31.04 17.15 18.23
- Provision for bonus & Incentive Payabla 2,058.10 1,287.72 901.84
- Provision for ESOP - - 12.00
2,393.43 2,044.99 1,328.88
{Il) Liabilities to be sattled after tweive months after reporting date
- Provision for compensated absanca 384.66 37388 270.25
= Provision for iong service awards 147.75 136.98 66.18
« Provision tor ESOP - - 1.28
532.41 510.96 337.7M
Others
(i) Liablitles to be settled within twelve months after reporiing date
- Pravision for reward paints redsmption 36,660.58 25,478.78 18,855.59
- Provislan for expensas 6,958.06 7.033.82 14,757.59
- Provision for expenses- Felated party 282.92 372.58 643.43
- Intertm equity dividend 8,372.62 . 7.850.00
- Provision for tax on interim equity dividend 1,720.93 . 1,598.08
' 53,895.11 32,885.18 43,704.69
{ii) Llabllities to ba seltled after twelve months after reporting date
- Provision for reward points redemplion 7.981.81 6,147.58 4,150.18
7,981.81 6,147.58 4,150,16
Total 64,902.76 41,588.61 49,521.42
i
23. Other non financial liabilitles
Partlculars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at Aprll 01, 2017
Labliitles to ba settled within twelve months after reponting date:
Ravenue recelved in advance
-Unamortised membership fees and subvention income 26,265,72 17,978.68 1281731
-Statutory liabilitias 28,036.91 131821 1,523 58
Total 54,302.63 31,131,239 14,340.89

32




SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Aupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24. Equity Share Capitat

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2019 2018 2m7y

Authorised Capital

1,000,000,000 (Pravious year 1,000,000,000} equity shares of Rs.10 each 100.000.00 100.000.00 100,000.00
100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

837,222,224 ( Previous year 785,000,002) equity shares of As.10 each 83,722.22 78,500.00 78,500.00

TOTAL 83,722.22 78,500.00 76,500.00

(1} Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

As at March 31, 2019

AsaiMarch31,2018

As at Aptil 01, 2017

Number of

) umber o Number of
L L Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Reconciliation of the number of shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 785,000,002 78,500.00 785,000,002 78,500.00 785,000,002 78,500.00
52,222,222 522222 -

Movements®
837,222,224 83,722.22

785,000,002 78,500.00

Balance as at the end of the year

* During the year company has issued addilional 52,222,222 shares through right issues at fair market value of Rs, 90 each aggregating to Rs. 47000 lakhs,

(it} Rights, preferences and restriction attached to shares

The company has only one class of equily share having par valus of Rs.10 per share. Each halder of the
hoiders of the equity shares will be enlilted 10 receive 1he remaining assets of the company, atier distribution of all prafreniial amounts.

(iii} Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the aggregale sh in the Company

As at March 31, 2018

785,000,002 78,500.00
N ——Y e — TN

equity share is enlitled to ona vole per share. In the liquidation of the company, the

As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2019
Particulars % Number of Shares % Number of % Number of Shares
Shares
Holding Company
Shares held by State Bank of India 74% 619,544,445 74% 580,900,001 B0% 471,000,002
Shares held by CA Rover Holdings 26% 217,677,779 26% 204,100,001 0% -
0% - 0% [+} 40% 314,000,000

Shares held by GE Capitat Mauritius Overseas Investiment
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
25. Other equity

Particulara
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Capital reserve {refer note 25,1 betow)

- - 41.36
Slatulory reserve (reler note 25.2 balow) §5,055.98 39,200.14 32,037.55
General reserve (refer note 25.3 Delow) 517.97 §17.97 476.61
Securities Pramiunm reserva (reler note 25.4 below) 41,717.78 - -
Cash flow hedging resarve {refer note 25.5 below) 1416 - =
Retained earnings (refer note 25.6 below) 137,654.35 84,728.82 33,986.63
TOTAL 235,020.24 124,546.93 66,522.15

25.1 Capltal reserve

Partlculars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Balance at baginning of year

- 41.36 49.00
Add: Deferred tax adjustment - -
Less: Utilised during the year - - (7.64)
Less: Transterred to General Reserve - (41,36) -
Balance at end of year - - 41.36

25.2 Statutory reserve
{Under Sectlon 45-IC of the Ressrve Bank of India Act, 1934)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at Aprll 01, 2017
Balance at beginning of year 39,300.14 32,037.55 24,229 39
Add: Transferred from surplus balance @ 20% 15,755.84 7,262,59 7.808.16
Add: Deferred tax adjustment
Balance at end of year 55,055.98 39,300,14 32,037.55
25.3 General reserve
Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As al March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Balance al beginning of year 517.97 476.61 476.61
Add: Amount transferred from Capital Raserve - 41.36 -
Add: Deterred tax adjustment

Balance at end of year §17.97 517.97 476.61

25.4 Securltles premium reserve

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Balance at baginning af year C -
Add: During the year

MN777.78 - 5
Add: Deferred tax adjustment S 5
Balance at end of year 41,777.78 - -

25.5 Cash flow hedge reserve

Particulars
Balance at beginning of ysar
Add: During the year

As at March 31, 2019 Aa at March 31, 2018 As at Aprll 01, 2017

21.76 - -
Add: Deferred tax adjustment {7.60) - -
Balance at end of year 14.16 - -

25.6 Retained earninga

Partlculars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Balance at baginning of year 84,728.82 33,966.63 12,248 91
Add: Prafit for the year 78,779.18 58,130.98 38,973.96
Less; Interim equity dividend (8,372.62) . (7.850.00)
Less: Tax on Intarim equity dividend {1,720.93) - (1,598.08)
Add: transier From Other Comprehensive Incorme (4.26) {106.20) -
Less: Transfer o Slatutory reserva {15.755.84) (7.262.59) {7.608.16)
Balance at end of year 137,654.35 84,728.82 33,966.63
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to statement of profit and loss
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26. Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss

(i) On trading portfolio

{ii) On financial instruments designated at fair value through prafit ar
loss

Total

Fair Value changes:

-Realised
-Unrealised
Total

27. Other income

10.35

10.35

10.35

10.35

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit on sale of Investment 38.30 53.72
Bad Debts Recovered 25,342.58 17,325.48
Other Interest Income 427.12 34317
Liabilities written back 107.91 156.66
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 1,631.50 &
Total 27,547.41 17,879.03

28. Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended

(A) At Amortised cost

Interest on borrowings
Interest on debt securities
Interest on subordinated liabilities

Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation
(considered as finance cost)

Total (A)

{B} Financial intruments designated as hedging instruments
Cost of Hedging

Total (B)

Total ( A+B )

29. Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2018

42,879.55 8,855.92
35,152.16 51,426.95
9,049.77 7.,749.28
2,226.30 2,571.20
89,307.78 70,603.35
11,076.21 S
11,076.21 &
100,383.99 70,603.35

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31,2018

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident fund
Contribution to other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Total
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13,540.85 10,648.12
567.99 458.31
292.70 345.40

1,291.66 1,487.22

15,693.20 12,939.05




SBI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to statement of profit and loss

(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
30. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

—— - -
Depreciation expenses 155.37 119.28
Total 155.37 119.28

31. Operating and other expenses

Parliculars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Consumption of plastic cards & embossing

3,066.52 1,834.75
Rent and hire charges 1,336.33 1,010.76
Travelling and conveyance 1,354.62 1,219.57
Telephone, fax and postage 3,919.66 3,288.39
Card transaction charges 30,941.37 21,055.62
Advertisement 6,130.38 4,850.65
Sales Promotion 165,518.50 121,459.38
Insurance expense 334.14 220.91
Protessional & Consulting fees 11,215.68 10,186.05
Processing Charges 78,678.91 65,462.71
Rates and taxes 313.00 17.51
Collection charges 20,385.92 14,142.17
Repalrs and maintenance-others 309.77 465.19
Auditor's remuneration {refer note 38) 36.18 39.55
Power and fuel 219.96 308.22
Printing, stationery and office supplies 3,201.47 3,274.54
Royalty Expenses 1,575.80 1,028.87
Reward points redemption 41,307.47 30,158.44
Surcharge Waiver to Customer 3,326.72 2,460.56
Donation 43.87 -
Net loss on fair value changes of derivative - - 285.37
Other Advances written off / provision for doubtful advances 12,072.84 101.09
Other Expenses 43.45 64.9
Net loss on foreign currency transactions - 43.60
Loss on sale of fixed assets 6.28 16.30
Total 385,338.84 282,995.11

* Operating & other expenses includes year end provision for FY 2018-19 amounting to Rs. 718,971,901 and reversal of year end
provision for FY 2017-18 amounting to Rs. 709,515,708
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5Bl Cards and Payment Sarvices Private Limited
Noles to statement of profit and loss
{Figure in Rupees Lakha, unless otherwiae stated)

32. CSR Expenses
Fursuant to sectlon 135 of the Companles Acl, 2013 the company has incurred expenditure in respact of

Particul For the year ended For ihe year ended

articulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
CSR Expenses 1,263.27 908.67
Total 1,263.27 908.67

Amaunt spent during the year on;

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
a
Yet to be Yet to be paid
Paid in cash paid in cash Paid in cash in cash
(i) Construction/Acquisition of Assets 523.34 . 201.30 -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) abova 739.93 - 707.29 .
Total 1.263.27 - 908.67 -
33. Impalrmant losaes & bad debls
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
artieutar : March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
e e e e e et o e
Impairment losses & bad debts 108,557.95 83,672.44
Total 108,557.95 83,672,449
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Bad dabt written-oft 99,267.67 63,433.05
Impairment loss for other receivables {40.38) 48.07
Impairment loss for stage 1 & 2 assets * 6,991.41 B,774.28
Impairment loss for stage 3 assels 2,339.26 11,417.04
Total 108,557.95 83,672.44

*Provision as per ECL computation includes provision an standarg assels as per RBI prudential nonms.




5BI Cards and Payment Services Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

34. Tax expense

For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Current tax
In respect of the current year

50,279.13 27,578 41
In respect of prior years 133.42 {1.452 77)
50,412.55 26,125 64
Deferred tax
In respect of the currant year {7.525.65) 3,167.99
In respeci of prior years (24.27) 1,519.12
Total income tax expense recognised In the current year 42,862.63 30.812.65
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accouniing profit as folows:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Proiit before tax from continy ng operations

121,641.81 88,942.60
Income lax expense calculated af 34.944% (2017-2018 34.608%:) 42,506.51 30,781,62
DTA rate change (34.608% 10 34 944%) - (192,56}
Effect ot expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit -
Corporate social responsibility 220.32 157.24
Othears 26.65 -
42,753.48 30,746.30
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation 1o the current tax of pricr 109.15 6635
Incame tax expense recegnised in profit ar lass 42,862.63 30.812.65
Income tax recognised in uther comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Deferred tax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation and fair value of derwative

(5.31) 56 21
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (5.31) 5621
Bifurcation of the incame tax recagnised in other comprehensive income nig -
ltems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss (5.31) 5621
llems that may be raclassified 1o profit or loss - -
Total (5.31) 56.21
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36.

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Earnings/ (loss) per equity share

(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulurs For the year ended | For the year ended
R 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
a. Net Profit After Tax 871908 58130098
'|'| 3| | U : AR M B b, 1 .' H by " 1 N H I-! _
b, Weighted Average of l}umhu.r ol u]mt.y shares wsed in computing 8,198 1.850
basic and diluted cornings per share {in lakhs)
c._Basic and dilued caming jrer share (w'hy .01 741

Impact of application of Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Effeclive April 1, 2018, the company has applied Ind AS 115 which eslablishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be
recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.

The company has applied Ind AS 115 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
application recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at April
1, 2017. In accordance with the transition guidance in Ind AS 115 has only been applied to
contracts that are incomplete as at April 1, 2017, However, the company enters into a variety
of services contracts with customers which are governed by Ind AS 115 such as interchange

income, membership, business development incentive income and other fees such as ATM
fees, late payment elc.

The company's accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail in Note 4
above. Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the company's revenue
transactions, impact with amount of adjustment for each financial statement line item affected
by the appiication of Ind AS 115 is provided below.

Impacts on assets, liabilities and equity as at;

3119 L8 11l
Pateclrs | As previously  1nd AS 115 Aspreviously  Ind AS 115 As previously  Ind AS 115
:me adjustments . rg;ﬂedy adjustrenls =l repoﬂedlv atustments s
Contract Gl BN BN S iy BER0  hEE
Cortract gt YN A/ 1150 AT VT 18y
Cerlractassels 407368 BE M| 4316 B0 MG SN M @
Defemredtay [BA18 1665 L]
Proft and Liss Qsa B3861 .
Felaned eamings 1332

Impact of new revenue standard is mainly on account of deferral of card/contract acquisition
costs being incremental cosls of obtaining a contract which are recognised as assets and
amortized over the estimated behavioural life of card/customer. This new revenue guidance
also impacts the timing of certain business development incentives recognized in the
Company's statement of operations, as they are systematically recognized over the life of he
contract. Previously, such incentives were recognized when earned by the customers.
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SBE CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupecs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Critical accounting estimates (refer note 4.16)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The company has recognised the following amounts relating to revenue in the statement of
profit or loss:

For the year ended  For the year ended
Revenue from Services March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Income from membership fees and services 307,203.69 217,726.66
Service Charges 12,305.74 7,796.54
Business development incentive income 21,667.28 16,284.02
Insurance commission income 872,57 727.53
Total Revenue 341,176.71 241,807.22

Disaggregation of Revenue

services, business development services, membership services and other fees is not
concentrated to specific Cuslomer/segment. Management reviews the revenue of the
Company on the information available as disclosed in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The company applies practical expedient in Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information
about remaining performance obligations wherein the company has a right to consideration

from customer in an amount that directly corresponds with the value to the customer of entity's
performance till date.

The Company's remaining performance periods for its incentive arrangements with
interchange / network partners contracts with customers for its payment network services are
typically long-term in nature (typically ranging from 3-5 years). Consideration is variable based
upon the number of transactions processed and volume activity on the cards. At March 31,
2019, the estimated aggregate consideration allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations

for these other value-added services is Rs 8334.86 lakhs, which is expected to be recognized
through financial year 2020.

Receivables from contracts with customers and contract balances
Other receivable and contract assels are presented net of impairment in note 8.

The following table discloses balances in other receivables and unbilled receivables.
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LINITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2014
Other receivable 15,984.19 3,348.79
Contract assets {unbilled) 13,482.26 11,639.35
Total-Gross 29,466.45 14,988.14
To be realised within 12 months from reporting dates 21,131.59 8,307.61
To be realised after 12 months from reporting dates 8,334.86 6,680.53

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assels and contract
liabilities from contract with customers

Contract Assets

The contract assets primarily refate to the company's right to consideration for work completed
but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when
the right become unconditional. Below table shows the movement unbilled revenue,

Particulars As at 315t March 19 As at 31st March 18
Opening balance 11,639.35 9,223.68
Movement during the year 1,842.92 2,415.67
Closing balance 13,482.26 11,639.35
To be realised within 12 months from reporting dates 5,147.40 4,958.82
To be realised after 12 months from reporting dates 8,334.86 6,680.53

Contract costs

The contract cost primarily relates to:

* Cost of acquiring a customer is the incremental cost of obtaining contract with

customer, which is recognised in the profit and loss statement over the behavioural life
of the customer.

* Sales promotion expenses which are directly related to seling card membership to
new customers. This cost is deferred over the membership period consisting of 12

months,

Particulars As at 31st March 19 As at 31st March 18
Opening balance 37,144.41 16,803.02
Capitalised during the year 49,954.17 57,712.74
Amortised during the year 29,036.08 37,371.35
Closing balance 58,062.50 37,1434.41
To be realised within 12 months from reporting dates 9,236.35 6,278.33
3 be realised after 12 months from reporting dates 48,826.15 30,866.08
TE
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Contract liabilities - Revenue received in advance

The company sells credit card memberships to card holders, income earned from the
provision of membership services is recognised as revenue over the membership period at
fair value of the consideration net of expected reversals/ cancellations.

AsatMarch  As at March
Particulars 31, 2019 31,2018
Opening balance 17,978.68 12,817.31
Capitalised during the year 52,429.76  38,183.31
Amortised during the year 44,142.72  33,021.94
Closing balance 26,265.72  17,978.63
To be realised within 12 months from reporting dates 26,265.72  17,978.68
To be realised after 12 months from reporting dates - -

Contract liabilities are presented in note 23 to financial statements
Financial Instruments

Capital Management

Capital risk is the risk that the Company has insufficient capital resources to meet the
minimum regulatory requirements to support its credit rating and to support its growth and
strategic options. The Company's capital plans are deployed with the objective of maintaining
capital that is adequate in quantity and quality to support the Company's risk profile

Tier 1 capital consists of Equity share capital, Reserve & Surplus (netted off intangibles).

Tier 2 capital consists of Provision for Standard Assets & Subordinated debts as per extant RBI
Prudential norms for NBFCs.

Details of Tier 1 capital are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

Tier | Capital

244,816.86

157,687.31

119,330.13

Details of Tier 2 capital are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 [ As at March 31,2018 | As at April 1, 2017
Tier Il Capital 98,229.34 86,369.15 45,0257
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial stalements

As conlained in RBI Master Directions - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “RBI Master Directions”), the Company is required
to maintain a capital ratio consisting of Tier | and Tier I capital not less than 15 % of its
aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance shest and of risk adjusted vatue of off- balance
sheet items. Out of this, Tier | capital shali not be less than 10%. The Board of Director's

regularly monitors the maintenance of prescribed levels of Capital Risk Adjusted Ratio
(CRAR).

Key capital Ratios
Capital Risk Adjusted Ratio (CRAR) maintained and monitored by Company is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 { As at March 31,2018 | Asat April 1, 2017

CRAR - Tier | Capital 13.30% 10.97% 11.66%
CRAR - Tier Il Capital 5.34% 6.01% 4.40%
Total CRAR 18.63% 16.98% 16.06%

Company makes all efiorts to comply with the above requirements. Further, Company has

complied with all externally imposed capital requirements and internal and external stress
testing requirements.




SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupeces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

37.1. Financial instruments by category and fair value measurements

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegories as of March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Particulars Amortised cost . . Financial Tolal carryin Total fair value
iooe ot ToNabilos ot Fiancin 1%, "9 "
through profit or loss fair value hrough asse!slllahlllues

oci Designated as
Designated upon initial Equity instruments hedging
recognition designated upon Instruments
injtial recoqnition

Assets:
Cash and cash equivaients (Reler Note 5) 46,716.53 - - - 46,716.53 46,716.53
Bank Balance other than (a} above {Reler Note 6) 4,325.96 - - - 4,325.96 4,325.96
Derivative Asset (Reier Nole 7) - 10.35 - - 10.35 10.35
Other receivable (Refer Nole 8) 29,403.56 - - - 29,403.56 28,129.25
Loans {Reler Note 9) 1,790,872.72 - - - 1,790,872.72 1,770,842.10
Investments (Refer Note 10) 0.10 - 146.21 - 146.91 146.31
Cther Financial assets (Refer Nole 11)

Securily deposils 583.69 - - - 583.69 490.99

Fixed Deposils (under lien for guaraniees) 527.00 - - - 527.00 527.00
Total 1,872,429.56 10.35 146.21 - 1,872,586.12 1,851,188.50
Liabilities:
Derivalive Liabilities (Reler Nole 16) - - o 10,953.47 10,953.47 10,953.47
Trade payables {Reler Note 17) 58.837.98 - - 58,837.98 58,837.98
Other payables (Refer Note 17) 68.63 - - 68.63 68.63
Debt Securities (Reler Note 18} 407.931.56 . - 407,931.56 407,484.16
Borrowings {Other than Debl Securities) (Refer Nole 19) 820.087.58 - - 820,087.58 B820,087.58
Subordinaled Liabililies (Reler Mote 20) 119,679.85 - - 119,679.85 119,127.93
Other financial liabilities (Rofer Nole 21)

Interesl accrued 14,562.54 S - 14,562.54 14,562.54

Other liabilities 621.24 - - 621.24 621.24

Payable to Network Pariners 66,668.45 66,668.45 66,668.45

Excess amounl from Card holders 13.950.26 13.950.26 13,950.26
Total 1,502,408.09 - - 10,953.47 1,513,361.56 1,512,362.25
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(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

The carrying value and fair value ol financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:
Financial Total carrying Total fair value

Particulars Amortised cost Financial assets/ Fm.a m..-.{a l assets/liabilities value
liabilities at fair value 2> e Designated as
through profit or loss AL O EE hedging
oct
Instruments
Designated upon initial Equity instruments
recognition designated upon
initial recoanition
Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 25,273.85 - . . 25,273.85 25,273.85
Bank Balance other than (a) above 3,520.66 . 3,520.66 3,520.66
Qther receivable 14,884 .86 - 14,884.86 13,905.38
Loans 1,404,553.96 - 1,404,553.96 1,392,279.04
Invesiments 0.10 - = - 010 0.10
Olher Financiaf assets
Securily deposits 49079 - - - 490.79 434.07
Fixed Deposits {under hen for guarantees) 27.00 5 - - 27.00 27.00
Total 1,448,751.22 - - - 1,448,751.22 1,435,440.11
Liabilities:
[Crerivative Liabilities & 285.37 - - 285.37 285.37
Trade payables 39,429.60 - - - 38,429.60 39,429.60
Other payables 7.98 = S S 7.98 7.98
Debt Securilies 294,892.60 - - - 254,892.60 253,718.13
Borrowings 730,534.48 - - - 730,534.48 730,534.48
Subordinated Liabilines 99,803.74 - - - 99,803.74 101,901.01
Other linancial liabilities
Interest accrued 7.019.47 - - 7.019.47 7,019.47
Other liabilities 524.68 - : - - 524.68 52468
Payable to Network Partners 43,443.67 - 43,443.67 43,443.67
Excess amount from Card holders 13.519.91 - 13,519.91 13,519.941
Total 1,229,176.13 285.37 - - 1,229,461.50 1,230,384.30
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
{Iigure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of April 01, 2017 were as follows:

Particulars Amortised cost g Financial Total carrying Total fair value
. . Financial Sl gp—
Financial assets/ S assets/liabilities value
g . assets/liabilities at A
liabilities at fair value . Designated as
. fair value through .
through profit or loss hedging
ocl
Instruments
Designated upon initial Equity instruments
recognition designated upon
initial recognition _
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1747219 - . . 17,472.19 17.472.18
Bank Balance oiher than {a) above 10,822.45 - - 10,822.45 10,822.45
Other receivable 13,247.82 E . 13,247.82 12,673.52
Loans 998,285.03 . - 998,285.03 992.010.18
Investments 010 - - 0.10 0.10
Other Financia! asse!s
Security deposits 24511 - - - 245.11 218.24
Fixed Deposits (under lien for guarantees) 2.00 - . - 2.00 2.00
Total 1,040,074.70 - - - 1,040,074.70 1,033,198.67
Liabilities;
Trade payables 11,886 92 . - - 11,886.92 11,886.92
Other payables 20.52 . - 20.52 20.52
Debt Securities 750.978.17 . - 750,978.17 750,978.17
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 19,724 35 - . 19,724 .35 19,724.35
Subordinated Liabilities 53,889.65 53,889.65 56,200.24
Interest accrued 1,461.38 1,461.38 1,461,38
Other liabilities 393.46 - - . 393.46 393.46
Payabie to Network Partners 18,713.29 : 18,713.29 18,713.29
Excess amount from Card holders 8,274.83 8,274.83 8.274.83
Total B865,342.57 - - - 865,342.57 867,653.16
46
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Hierarchy of Fair value measurements

Level 1 - Quoted
Level 2 - Inputs

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or lia

(uncbservable inputs).

A. Fair value of the Compan

fair value on a recurring basis

prices (unadjusled) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for

bilities that are not based on observable market data

y's financial assets and liabilities that are measured at

Limited). Company s a fintech
starlup engaged in the,
business of praviding Smart &
Digitai lending platform ang
markel place’

Finanical Assesy Fair value as at Valuation lelchnique(s) and key
Finanical Liabllities) AsalMarch31,2019 | AsatMarch 31,2018 | Asal April 1, 2017 | Fair value inpul(s)
hierarchy

Foreign currency forward Fulure cash Rows are estimated based
contracts designated in on fgnward exchange rates from
hedge accourting ohservable fonvard exchange rate at the
relaticnships { Riefer foregn {#0,95347 Level 2 lend of the reporting period) and contract
currency nsk management farward rates, discounted at a rate that
related disclasures given refiects the credit disk of vasious
below) tounterparties
Foraign currency Jorward Future cash flows are estmated based
centracts not designated in on lorward exchange rates from
hedge accounting observable forward exchange rate at the
relat 2nships | Refer foreign 1035 [285.37 cevelZ lend of the reporiing penad) and contract
currency risk management torward rates, discounted at a rate (hat
reiated disclosures given reflects the ¢redit risk of various
belaw) counterparties

146.21 ‘nvestment was made n July 2018 as
INvestments in equily per tha valuat:on report at that point in
nstruments at FYTOC 3.5% equily nvestment n time. Thereafter, based on uraud.ed

Onlfine PSB Loans Lid linancials of he entdy, we have nct
(farmerly known as| observed any materiat variation in
Captawarid platform Frivate ievel]  [business performance 1 date,

Considenng a very shord tim beteen
nvestment date and ba'ance shes! date
we have assumed a lar value equal I

the carnang value as on balance sheet
cate

"These investments in equit
medium or long-term strate
has chosen to designate |
reflecting changes in fair va

B. Fair value of the Com

at fair value:

Except as detailed in the following table,
amounts of financial assets and financial Jia

approximate their fair values,
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y instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for
gic purpose. Upon the application of Ind AS 109, the Company

hese investments in equity instrumenis as at FVTOCI , then
lue immediately in profit or loss.

pany's tinancial assets and liabilities that are not measured

the management consider that the carrying
bilities recognised in the financial stalements
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Fair value of the Company's financial assels and liabilities that are nol measured at fair
value as on March 31, 2019 are:

Parti Carrying value Fairvalue  Fair value measurement at end of the reporting
articulars . .
periodfyear using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assels;
Loans 1,790,872 72 1,770,842.10 - . 1,770,842 10
Other receivable 29.403 56 28,12925 2812925
Other Financial assels
Security deposits 563.69 49099 . - 450 99
Total 1,820,859.97 1,799,462.35 . . 1,799,462 35
Liabilities:
Debt Securities 407,931.56 407,484.16 45,288.00 - 362,196.16
Subordinated Liabilities 119,679.85 118,127.93 25,368.75 - 93,759.18
Tolal 527,611.41 526,612.10 70,656.75 . 455,935.15

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabiiities that are not measured at fair
value as on March 31, 2018 are:

Parti Carrying amount Fair value  Fair value measurement at end of the reporting
articulars . .
period/year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets;
Loans 1,404,553 96 1,392,279.04 - - 1,392,273 04
Other receivablg 14,884.86 1390538 - 13,905.38
Other Financial assets
Security deposits 490.7% 43407 434,07
Total 1,419,929.61 1,406,618.50 - - 1,406,618.50
Liabilities:
Debt Securities 294,892 60 293,718.13 - . 293718.13
Subordinated Liabilities 99,803 74 10190101 - 101,901.01
Total 394,696,34 395,619.14 - - 395.619.14
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Fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair
value as on April 1, 2017 are:

Particulars Carrying amount Fairvalue  Fair value measurement at end of the reporting
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assels:

Loans 998,285 03 932,010.18 . - 992,010.18

Other receivable 13,247.82 12673.52 - . 12,673 52

Other Financial assets

Security deposits 245.11 218.24 - - 218.24

Total 1,011,777.96 1,004,901.93 - - 1,004,901,83

Liabilities:

Trade payables 11,886.,92 11,886.92 > g 11,886.92

Subordinated Liabilities 53,889.65 56,200.24 - 56,200.24

Total 65,776.57 60,087.16 . . 68,087.16

C. Reconciliation of Leve! 3 fair value measurements

Unlisted shares irrevicably Unlisted shares irrevicably
as at FVTOCI as at FVTOCI
as at March 31, 2019 as at March 31, 2018

Particulars

Opening balance

Total gains or losses:

in profit or loss

in other comprehensive income
Purchases 146.21
lssues
Disposals/ settlements -
Transfers out of level 3
Closing balance 146.21

37.2. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The company has exposure to the following types of risks from financial insfruments:

*  Market risks;

e Credil risk;

* Liquidity risk; and
¢ Operational risk

The Company has put in place a mechanism to ensure thal the risks are monitored
carefully and managed efficiently. The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these
risks by using asset liability matching strategies and use of derivative financial instruments.
The Company's risk management policies are guided by well-defined policies appropriate
for various risk categories, independent risk oversight and periodic monitoring. The
Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes.
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The Company's Board of Direclors have overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the company's risk managemenl framework. The Board of Directors has
established the Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC) which is responsible for
approving and monitoring company risk management policies. The company's risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to

limits. The risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the company's activities,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, to fair values or to future cash flows that
may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.

The company uses a wide range of qualitative and quantitative tools 1o manage and
monitor various types of market risks it is exposed to. Quantitative analysis such as net

income sensitivities, stress tests etc. are used to monitor and manage company's market
risk appetite.

A. Interestrisk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair value of
financial  instruments because of changes in  market interest rates.

The Company does not have any floating rate loans. However, the Company is exposed to
interest rate risk on following borrowings which are very short term (upto 12 months) in
nature and are open 1o repricing risk at the time of reborrowing. Repricing risk is the risk of

changes in interest rale charged at the time a financial instrument is matured and
reborrowed.

Year Amount Weighted Average
Interest rate
March 31, 2019 1,036,827.75 7.81%
March 31, 2018 969,219.13 7.07%
April 1, 2017 774,581.58 7.69%

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

30-basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rale risk internally to

key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

The below table presents the impact on Profit / {L.oss) before tax for 50 basis point increase

or decrease in inlerest rate on Company's short-term interest rates liabilities which are
open to repricing risk (assuming ali other variables are held constant):

Decription As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Increase | Decrease | Increase | Decrease | Increase | Decrease
Total Impact (5,184.14) 5184.14 (4,846.10) 4,846.10( (3,872.91) 3,872.91

50



SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the amount outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50-basis point increase or
decrease represenis management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. The company's sensitivity to interest rate has increased on a year {o year
basis primarily due to business growth and correspondingly increase in borrowings.

B. Foreign Currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument, denominated in currency other than functional currency, will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk

mainly on its borrowings denominated in foreign currency resulting in exposures to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations.

The carrying amount of company's foreign currency denominated borrowings are as
follows;

Particulars Liabilities Assels

As at March | As at March | As at April | As at March [ As at March | As at April
31,2019 31,2018 1,217 | 31,2019 31,2018 1,2017
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)| 131,686 82 97,200.59 -

Refer Note 19)
Others 3,586.58 274470 | 152833 1241452 4,056.98 25609
Total 135,273.40 99,945.29 [ 1,528.39 | 12,414.52 4,056.98 256.09

Eoreign currency sensitivity analysis

The below table presents the impact on profit or loss [+ Gain / {-) Loss] before tax for 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rate against INR:

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis| As at March | As at March | As at April
31,2019 31,2018 1, 2017

Impact
Currency depreciating by 5% {6,142 94) (4,794.42) {63.61)
Currency Apprecialing by 5% 6,142.94 4,794.42 63.61

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their transtation for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. Sensitivity
analysis given above is unrepresenlative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the
exposure at the end of the reporting periods does not reflect the exposure during the years,

Foreign currency risk monitoring and management

The Company's currency risk management policy lays down the appropriate systems and
controls to identify, measure and monitors, the currency risk for reporting to the
management. Parameters like hedging ratio, un- hedged exposure, mark-to markel
position, exposure limit with banks etc. are continuously monitored as a part of currency
risk management. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved parameters

using forward foreign exchange contracts. Foreign currency exposure under borrowings is
tully hedged as on reporting date.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters in to derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward

contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.
The counterparty for these contracts is a bank.

Contracts included in hedqe relationship

Fair value
Cash flow hedging {Spot rale} | Action Currency | Amount | Exchange | As atMarch [As at March As at April 1,

rate 3, 2019 31,2018 017
Finacial Liability < 6 Months) Buy UsD [ $1,00380( 69.17 131,686.82

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the company has designated cerain foreign
exchange forward contracts as cash flow hedges the movement in spot rates to mitigate
the risk of foreign exchange éxposure on underlying foreign currency exposures, Hedge
effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic
prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists
between the hedged item and hedging instrument, including whether the hedging
instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items.
If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk
management objeclive remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge
accounting and any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted for in the stalement
of profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

The following table provides the reconciliation of cash flow hedge reserve for the year
ended March 31, 2019

Particulars As at As at March
March 31, 31, 2018
2019

Gain/{loss)
Balance at the beginning of the period

Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive

. . . 21.76

inceme during the period

Amount reclassified to profit or loss during the -
period

Tax impact on above (7.60) -

Balance at the end of the period

14.16

Contracts not designated under hedge relationship

Fair valug
Cash flow hedging Action | Currency | Amount | Exchange [ As atMarch |As at March| As at Aprii 1,
Tale 3, 2019 3, 2018 2017
Finacial Liab ity | < & Months) Buy Usp $1,494 40 6504 -| 9729182 -
Finacial Asset | < 6 Months) Sell UsD $1250 6917 B64.63
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Unhedged Posilion of the company is as follows:

Parliculars As at March 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018 As al April 1, 2017

UsD Amount UsD Amount UsD Amount
Finacial Liability $51.85| 358658 340.80] 265347 §2357]  1528.39
Finacial Asset $166.98) 11,549.90 $62.38 4,056.98 $3.95 256.09
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the company's customers fail
to fulfill their contractual obligations to the company. The credit risk management and
control are centralised in a credit risk management team which reports regularly to Chief
risk officer and Risk management committee of board of direclors {(RMCB)

Credit risk arises mainly from loans and advances to retail and corporate customers arising
on account of facilitating credit card loans to customers. The company also has exposure to
credit risk arising from other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, other

financial assets including fixed deposits with banks, other receivables from contracts with
customers and contract assets etc.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with

banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies.

Credit risk management approach

Managing credit risk is the most important part of total risk management exercise. The
company's credit risk sub-function headed by Chief Risk Officer (CRO) is responsible for
the key policies and processes for managing credit risk, which include formulating credit
policies and risk rating frameworks, guiding the company's appelite for credit risk
exposures, undertaking independent reviews and objective assessment of credit risk, and
monitoring performance and management of portfolios. The principal objectives being
maintaining across the company a strong culture of responsible lending, and robust risk
policies and control frameworks, implementing and continually re-evalualing our risk

appetite and ensuring there is adequate scrutiny of credit risks, their costs and their
mitigation.

The basic credit risk management would cover two key areas, viz., (a) customer selection &

(b) customer management. These are governed by Board Approved Credit Policy and
Collections Policy which is reviewed on a regular basis.

(a) Customer Selection

Key criterion for customer selection is in accordance with Board Approved Credit Palicy,
which defines, inter alia, type of customers, category, market segment, income criterion,
KYC requirement, documentation etc. The Policy also spells out details of credit appraisal
process, delegation structure. The correcl customer selection process aims to ensure
quality portfolio and lower delinquency.

All the fulfilled applications undergo fraud dedupe check through a fraud delection sofiware
for national and local fraud matches. The cases also undergo scrutiny of KYC and income
documents where all the approvable cases get screened by internal fraud prevention team
for probable fraud alerts. The organization also works on system sampling through rules
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driven triggers that are based on market knowledge, fraud trends and other portiolio levels
indicators.

For retails customers Credit limit is derived based on credit assessment of the individual
based on bureau, income documents provided by the applicant and basis the overall risk
profiling along with internal credit assessments process. The applications go through the
application scorecards for approval. Multiple scorecards tailormade to different customer
segmenls have been implemented which take into consideration; an applicant's

demographic, financial details along with credit worthiness assessment derived through the
relationships & performance with the competitors.

Organization has worked on strengthening the credit decision process with pre-qualification
of the probable customers and scientific setection based on liability score model developed
internally for appropriate customer selection and targeting.

Approval rate trend

Different multi-layered strategies have been implemented and overlaid on the score
generated for each application to approve or reject. A new scorecard was developed and
implemented in Nov'18 with an aim to continue on profitable growth by scaling up card
acquisitions without compromising on credit quality. We have made multiple interventions
throughout the year to strengthen the acquisition quality. This has led to improvement in
approval rates in lhe currenl financial year. The changes include discontinuation of
programs, revision in MCP, scorecard level changes etc.

Deciding the Credit Limit

Credit limit assignment is a function of income capacity and risk assessment done for the
individual applicant. Risk assessment is done based on internal scorecards that are based
on applicant bureau history, application profile and demographic variables.

Underwriting Process for unsecured corporate card exposure

* For all unsecured corporate card exposures, SBlI Card conducts a detailed
subjective assessment based on information taken from the corporate, bureau

reports, third parly credit assessment agencies like raling agencies and any publicly
available information.

* To accurately assess the credit profile of a corporale, SBI Card assesses the
performance trends over the recent past as well as the estimate for the near future,
and not just at a specific point in time. While the most critical indicators are detailed
in the annexure along with the benchmarks approved by the board, many other
performance indicalors are presented in our credit proposals. These also vary
slightly depending on the industry of operation of the corporate (for e.g., for
manufacturing companies, working capital cycle and cash flow is assessed in detail;

for companies in the service industry profitability margins and customer profile is
studied in detail).,

In general, we evaluate the business risks associated with the corporate and its
industry, its financial profile, liquidity situation and financial flexibility (in case of any
perceived liquidity stress). We assess the trend over the years of various financial
indicalors like net revenue movement, profitability margins, interest cover, debt-to-
equity, current ratio, working capital cycle, cash flow assessment elc. A peer
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comparison is also made between the corporate and other reputed companies from
the same industry.

Further, we assess the credit history indicators as determined by independent 3rd
party agencies — exlernal rating, bureau reporting, RBI negative list and asset
classification letters from bankers. If the corporate has availed SBI credit facilities
relationship, we also receive the details highlighting the type of facilities, payment
track record, SB raling etc. A detailed call is also conducted with the corporate and

SBI RM (in case the corporate has availed credit taciliies from SBI) in order to
clarify any queries/ concerns.

* If the credit profile of the corporate is deemed acceptable, and the corporate meets
all the regulatory guidelines, the proposal is put before the approving authority (as
per the delegation authority approved by the Board of Directors).

Underwriting Process for secured corporate card exposure

SBI Card allows exposure 1o weaker corporates against liquid securities (e.g. Fixed Depaosit
& Bank Guarantee). For all secured corporate card exposures, SBI Card checks the bureau
reports and a slightly shorter proposal is put betore the approving authority (as per the

delegation authority approved by the Board of Directors). The security is validated before
any cards are issued.

(b} Customer Management

Customer management is carried out through Account Management System, which
inctudes:

Fraud detection

Portfolio quality review
Credit line increase
Cross sell on cards
Behavior scorecard; and
Collection score card ete.

The Company deploys right tools & contemporary technology 1o ensure the same. The
company has deployed practices/analytics such as the following to monitor and mitigate
credit risk apart from accepting collaterals (for secured category of loan products)

Delinquency metrics have been developed and conslanlly evaluated & porifolio
interventions leading to better quality of incoming new accounts

Strong collection practices driving consistent improvements in collection metrics

&leveraging the latest credil bureau {CIBIL) information to improve recoveries from older
pools

Strong use of analytics in measuring and monitoring credit risk are used such as;

» Scorecards assessing default risk & payment propensity

* Predictive Business Analytics Models Viz. Debl Estimation, Line Assignment,
Profitability based models

* Loss Forecasling Models
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Portfolio Risk Management encapsulates the full spectrum of the customer lifecycle once
the customer's account is onboarded on system. Building on the information captured at
the time of sourcing, credit-intelligence enriching activities are undertaken to create a
customer's profile around propensity to spend-pay-revolve-cross sell, delingquency, debt
burden, spend affinity etc. The profiles are further matured in due course of time with

customer's credit behavior- both onus {within the bank) and oif us (with competitors from
Credit Bureaus).

Portfolio Risk Management Tools

Portfolio Risk Management leverages a host of information available on customer's
behavior, both internal (account performance} and external (credit bureau information).
These data points are collected at various stages of the customer lifecycle- active, inactive,

pre-delinguency, early-delinquency, severe delinquency and post write-off. The usage of
these data points is as below:

* Predictive Modeling: This is one of the strongest tools available for risk

management where stalistical scorecards are developed lo predict customer's
behavior.

¢ Bureau data: Bureau data is a very rich source to create a holistic credit profile of
the customer and is refreshed on a Quarterly basis. Industry data covers number of

trades (by type of trade- PL, Card, mortgage etc.), balances, detinquency history on
each trade elc.

e Bureau event triggers: Event based triggers can be set lo alert a specific activity
by the customer with competition banks which is reported to credit bureaus. For

example, an inquiry for a personal loan in bureau can be a trigger to offer a Loan on
card internally

» Spend Indicators: Spends data offers a rich insight into customer's differential risk
profile when every other parameter {scores, payment ratio, spend ratio) is constant.
A sudden and drastic shift from stable consumption based spend (utilities,

groceries, fuel etc.) to aspirational spend (jewelry, apparel, gaming) can indicate
future deterioration of risk grade.

Portfolio Management activities

Multiple portfolio management aclivities are undertaken based on the Risk Management
tools described above. These activities and programs heavily leverage the bureau
information in addition to onus data

Portfolio Segmentation

Using scorecards and other account behavior metrices, portfolio is segmented into Grow,
Keep and Liquidate for non-delinguent portfolio. These segments offer a better risk grading
compared to individual scorecards since it has an overlay of non-score parameters. The
idea is lo take positive credit expansion action on the Grow segment {Prime credit grade),
monitor and take calibrated positive actions on the Keep segment (Semi-prime credil
grade) and take negative actions on the Liquidate segment (Sub-prime credit grade), The
positive and negative actions have been described later in the document.
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For delinquent portfolio similar score and non-score-based segmentations are created
which then are allocated 1o collections as per defined collections and recovery strategies.

Cross-Sell & authorization

Credit expanding activities are taken on the portfolio based on portfolio segments which
include loan on card, limit increase, balance transfer and card upgrades. Cross-sell is
targeted towards Prime and Semi-Prime segments and aims to grow the good asset and
bring in low risk revenues. In additional to permanent increase in exposure, temporary
increase in exposure is also taken by means of risk based over limit authorization to allow
customer convenience and generate fee-based revenue.

Account Management

Detaiied policies and processes are created for end to end management of the account by
means of a comprehensive services policy. It covers security checks at call center/website,
account modification activities (address/contact detail change), customer-initiated requests
(balance refund, loan requesls), account reinstatement, card renewals, supplementary
card, billing cycle change, reversal of charges, bureau reporting, dispute/fraud chargeback
among others. The primary objeclive is to respond to queries in a timely and accurate
manner and resolve disputes expediently. Technology is heavily leveraged here wherein
bulk of the poficies and processes are automated with self-service channels for customers.
Processes have been created to simplify the customer journey for fulliiment of customer

requests. It is also ensured that all account management policies adhere to regulatory
guidelines with respect to KYC norms, customer consent etc.

Collections and Recoveries

Strategies have been created for repayment al various stages which starts at DPD where
customer has missed the payment due date but is yet to go delinquent. Further segments
have been crealed using the collections scorecards and other variables and the output is
passed on to the collections team for on field/agency activities. The frequency, mode and
verbiage of communication is decided based on the segmentations,

Fraud Conirol

Checks have been built into the account management policy to prevent unauthorized

access or takeover of customer account. In addition to that, a robust strategy has been
created around transaction fraud covering:

» Decline/alert Rules based on Volume-velocity-variety
» Daily dispute review to identity fraud patiern and merchant

» Daily new merchant review to block fraudulent merchants before they gain
momentum

+ Optimization of chargeback policy and processes to reduce manual errors
57



SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figure in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Notes forming part of the financial statements

+ SOP for the Fraud Risk Management agents who review fraud alerts.
A feedback loop is also created for the sourcing policy to discontinue segments which show
considerable and persistent delinquencies. The portfolio review across these metrices is
not onus but also with the industry by means of reports or custom analysis from network
(Visa/Mastercard/Rupay) or bureau.

Key levers and actions

When it comes to taking actions on portfolio based on the portfolio indicators there are

multiple levers of change depending on the desired outcome. These primarily are credit
limit, cross-sell offers, account blocking, communication.

Collection Approach

Customers who fail to pay iheir dues by the stipulated payment due date, at various stages
of delinquency, come under the purview of collections & recavery strategies, as is decided
by risk and/or collections team from time to time. SBICPSL employs various measures for
collection of dues including tele-calling, field visits, written reminders, SMS, legal recourse
etc. as is permitted by the approved strategy. Collection of dues will follow definitive
trealment hierarchy (viz. total amount payment, minimum amount payment, bucket
outstanding payment followed by financial hardship tools) and will involve laid down
procedures, duly approved. Collection team may segregate treatment of accounts based on
effectiveness of collections, cost implications & productivity benefit as well as the stage of
delinquency. Accounts may also get allocated to external agencies, duly empaneled,
depending on the severity, vintage of delinquency or any other relaled parameters.
5Bl Card may block the customer's account, in the event payment is not received within
stipulated paymenl due date, as communicated through statements & SMS. The account
block, in such cases, may be temporary or permanent depending on delinquency stage,
default potential, payment history.
Cycle due 8+ (180 days and above) Classified as Recovery Pool / Post charge-off bucket.
Alternate Dispule Resolution channels like Arbitration, Conciliation, Bilingual Legal Notice,
Privilege Police Complaint and Lok Adalat recourse taken depending upon risk profile.
Also, Quasi-legal, legal action under Sec 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act.

Also, the collaterals in the case of secured retail and corporale loans given are Fixed
Deposit (FD) or Bank Guarantee (BG) from banks and hence, there is no
significant/minimal credit risk associated for secured pool of loans which conslitutes
generally 1.3 % of the total credit exposure.

Stress testing on portfolio would be carried out periodically and results are regularly
reported 1o RMCB  and  necessarily  follow up  action is  taken.
The review of portfolio analysis & trends, including recovery rates, is carried out at monthly
intervals at the Executive Risk Management Committee of the Company.

Managing customer life cycle is a functional priority of the credit risk funclion.

However, the company may still continue to recover amounts legally and contractually
owed.
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Prohibited Practices

Tele callers / Recovery agents are prohibited in conducting the following acts but not limited
to:

* Engaging in any conduct or practices that harass, threat, oppress or abuse any
person in connection with the collection of a debt.

» Using false, deceptive or misleading representations or practices in colleclion of any
debt.

* Refrain from action that could damage the integrity and reputation of SBI Card.
* Threatening or using violence lo harm an individual's body, reputation or propeny.
* Using obscene gestures and abusive language (either orally or in writing).

Credit risk analysis

This section analyses Company's credit risk spiit as follows:;

(a) Exposure to credit risk - Analysis of overall exposure to credit risk before and after
credit risk mitigation.

(b) Credit quality analysis - Analysis of overall loan portfolio by credit quatity,
{(c) Impairment - Analysis of non-performing / impaired loans.

(d} Credit risk mitigation - Anal

type.

{a) Exposure to credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk before and after credit ri
in point (D)) is given below:

ysis of collaterals held by client segment and collatera!

sk mitigation (explained in detail

Particulars

As at March 31st, 2019

Carrying Amount

As at March 21st, 2018

Carrying Amount

As at April 15t 2017

Carrying Amount

Cash and bank batances

51,569.49

26,821.51 26.296.64
Loans 1,790.872.72 1,404,553.96 198,285 03
Deriavtives 10.35
Invesimenis 146.01 0.0
Chiher receivables 29,403.56 14,884.56 13247 g2
Toatal 1,872.002.43 1.448.260.33 1,039.823.59

Loans to customer includes loans secured by lien on Fixed deposits and Bank Guarantee
held with third party banks. Secured loans account for 1.38% as at March 31, 2019, 1.87°%
as al March 31, 2018, 2.82% as of March 31, 2017, of total loans

Notes:

* Loans to customers which accounts for 96% of total exposure to credit risk is
segregated based on risk characteristics of the population to manage credit quality
and measure impairment.

* Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in
deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Investment are valued at Fair value as on balance sheet date and effect has been

routed through Other Comprehensive Income to be in line with Ind AS guideline

Derivative instruments laken by the company are from the same party (Parent

company - Refer Note 16) from whom the company has laken the underlying loan.
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Hence, default risk from counterparty is also being a financial institution with high
credit raling is limited.

Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on trade receivables/other receivables wherein Company uses a provision matrix to
determine the impairment loss allowance on the porifolio of trade receivables.

Credit concentration risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure 1o a counterparty Credit
concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure to a counterparty or a group of
connected counterparties, or from multiple exposures across the portfalio that are closely
correlated.

Large exposure concentralion risk is managed through concentration limits set by a

counterparty or a group of connected Counterparties based on control and economic
dependence criteria

For concentrations that are material at a Company level, breaches and potential breaches

are monitored by the respective governance committees and reported to the Risk
Committee and CRO.

The Company follows the prescribed Regulatory Prudential Norms:

* Single Borrower Exposure limit - 15% of net owned funds of SBI Card & Payments
Services Ltd.

* Group Borrower Exposure limit - 25% of net owned funds of SB| Card & Payments
Services Ltd

In addition, there is also an internal capping on the single borrower exposure at As 200 Cr.
This is ~12.4% of net owned funds of the Company.,

Single Borrower and Group Borrower exposure as on;

Single Borrower Group Borrawer
exposure exposure

March 31, 2019 4.1% 8.6%

March 31,2018 4.3% 8.0%

April 1, 2017 4.3% 9.4%

The following tables gives credit risk / €xposure concentration by client segment

Concentration by client portfolio segment

The following table sets out an analysis of risk concenlration of loans to customers split by
client segment

Portiolio segment As at March 31,2019  As at March 31,2018]  Asat March 31, 2017
Corporate - Secured 27.724.00 7,365.26 7,182.09
Corporate - Unsecured 4,918.42 2597793 9,835.83
Retail - Secured 29,635.82 27,630.11 22,563.20
Retail - Unsecured 1,790,351.16 1,396,006.63 990,938.54
Total 1,852,629.41 1,456,979.92 1,030,519.66
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(b) Credit quality analysis

Credit grading
The Company uses an internal ratings model to determine credit quality of portfolio. A
breakdown of performing and non-performing loans by credit quality is given in B(ii} below.

The company classifies credit exposure basis risk characteristics into high/medium/low risk.

The Company has established a robust policy of credit risk / credit grading system in place
which is monitored rigorously.

The company has in place a credit risk grading model (Internal rating model) which is
supplemented by external data such as credit bureau scoring information, financials
statements and payment history that reflects its estimates of probabilities of defauits of

individual counterparties and it applies blocks(soft’/hard) on accounts based on activity
pattern of the borrower.

By Portfolio Seament

gl’:::;g fiek  classificaion/] . ot March 31, 2018]  As at Narch 31,2018  As at March a1, 2017
Strang ( Stage 1) 1,669,900.02 1,303,301.38 936,661.09
Satistactory { Stage 2) 137,434.43 112,428.86 £9,768.35
High Risk { Stage 3) 45,204.89 41,249.69 24,090.22
Total 105262035 1456.979.02 1030515.67 ]

Impact of year on year increase is on account of portfolio growth

Approach followed:
Stage 1

includes accounts that have not had a significant increase in credit fisk since initial recognition or have low credit

fisk at the reporing date. 12-month expecled credit losses (‘ECLY) are recognized and interest revenue is

calculated on the gross carrying amount of the assel

Stage 2 Includes accounts that have had a significant increasa in credit risk since initial recognition but that does not have
objective evidence of impairment. Lifelime ECL are the expecled credit losses that result from all possible default

events over (he expected life of the card,

includes accounts that have objective evidence of im pairment at the reporting date. Litetime ECL is calculated for
such accounts.

e
Credit quality by client segment

Stage 3

An overall breakdown of loan portfolio by client segment is provided below differentiating
between performing and non-performing loan book,

The company segregates its credit risk exposure from loans & advances to customers as
Stage 1 (Good), Stage 2 (Increased credit risk), Stage 3 (Impaired loans). The staging is
done based on criteria specified in Ind AS 109 and other qualitative factors. Refer section
below on "Expected credit loss" for basis of staging of loans.
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ECL for Corporate Secured = 0, as post 60DPD BG/FD gets revoked
ECL% ages YOY decreases YoY for Retail Secured., Overall, there is improvement in
ECL% ages for Retail Unsecured portiolio, mainly because of improvement in portfolio

quality year on year driven by better sourcing, certain bad segments were actioned upon
during FY2019 and improved recoveries,

(c) Impairment

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires
the use of models, as the exposure varies with the change in market conditions, expected
cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets

entails further estimations as to likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss
ratios, collaterals and coverage ratio ete,

The company measures credit risk using Probability of Default (PD), Exposure of Default
(EAD), Loss Given Default (LGD). Ind-AS 109 outlines a three staged model for
measurement of impairment based on changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

* A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition is classified in
'Stage 1’

e If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) is identified the financial instrument
moves to 'Stage 2'

» It the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument moves 1o ‘Slaged'
category.

The company defines default or significant increase in credit risk (SICR) based on the
following quantitative and qualitative criteria.

Definition of Default

Quantitative criteria
The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

Qualitative criteria

The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates that the borrower is in

significant difficulty wherein a 'hard block' is applied on accounts and is blocked for further
activity on meeting the following criteria;

¢ Arrangement to Pay

s  Setitlement

» Cardholder is deceased
* Restructured
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Definition of Significant increase in credit risk {SICR)
Quantilative criteria

The borrower is 30-90 past due on its contractual payments.

Qualitative criteria

When borrowers are classified as "high risk” or when the account is lagged as " over-limit"

i.e. when borrowers are expected to/approach their credit limit it is considered as indicator
of increased credit risk.

The default definition has been applied consistently to model the PD, LGD and EAD for
measurement of ECL,

Measuring ECL- Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estirmation techniques

ECL is measured on either a 12 month or lifetime basis depending on whether there is an

increase in SICR since initial recognition. ECL is the discounted product of PD, LGD and
EAD.

Estimation for retail accounts

PD

Month on month (MOM) default rates were calculated for all vinlages.
Post calculating Mom default rates, cumulative yearly PDs being calculated till lifetime.

» For Stage 1 accounts 1- year marginal PD were calculated.

= For Stage 2 accounts - Lifet me PDs were calculated

+ For Stage 3 accounts a 100 PD was taken

LGD

All discounted recoveries net of collection costs is calculated segment wise against
exposures 1o arrive at loss estimates. Discount rate being considered is the average vyield
rate across segments. LGD is floored at 0% and capped at 100%

EAD

Segment wise EAD is calculated using the below formula.

EAD = Balance OQutstanding + CCF*(Credit Limit — Balance Outstanding), where CCF is
proportion of unutilized credit limit which is expecled to be utilized till the time of default.
CCF is applicable only for stage 1 accounts, as stage 2 and slage 3 accounts cannot utilize

the unused credit limit. CCF % = Utilisation {1+12) - Utilisation (t) i.e. change of utilization
rates over next 1 year, its being floored at 0%

Segment wise PD and LGD rates arrived at for all stages is given below

PD LGD
Portfolio Segment
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage2 | Stage3
Corporate - Secured 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 00% 0.0%
Corporate - Unsecured 0.3% 0.3% 04% 53.9% 53.9% 539°%
Retail - Secured 3.9% 8.1% 100.0% 7.9% 79% 79%
Hetad - Unsecused 2.2% 6.2% 100.0% 66.6% 66.6% 66.6°-

The company revisits the inputs, assumptions used in measurement of ECL whenever
there is a significant change, at least every quarter.

63




Notes forming part of the financial statements

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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Below table shows stage wise portfolio gross exposure and loss allowance

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Portfolio Segment
Stage 1 Stage 2 Staged Stage 1 Sage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Comorats - Secured - . - 8471 - - 7794 . .
Corporate - Unsecursd 3241788 218.29 6.19 24 626.02 64.26 1.19 16,666.95 66.62 .41
Retai - Secured 28,307.47 1,171.18 15747 2%.268.15 1.196.77 165.19 2162333 631.28 110.39
Retai - Unsecured 160917497 136.044.96 45.131.24 1.243,765.49 111,167,682 4107331 £98.052.65 £8,870.46 2397342
Gross Exposuse 1,669,900.02 137 434.43 4523489 1,303.301.3 112.428.66 41,249,69 936.681.09 £9,768.35 24,090.22
Ness - Loss Alawance 25993 5 564483 30,1138 | 19.645.86 5.006.07 277401 13,136.79 274087 16,357.00
[Carrying Amount 1,643,901.50 131,769.60 15,181.61 | 1.283,655.51 10742278 13,475.64 | 923,524.30 67,027.48 113.3|
Below table shows the breakup of loss provision
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Portfolio Segment
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Corporate - Secured . . 25 . . 115 . .
Comorate - Unsecured 60.78 0.38 - 4690 0.18 6.94 14357 133 398
Retail - Secured §7.30 75 1240 12083 1065 15.58 116.78 823 13.19
Retail - Unsecuried 25,850.44 5,636.94 30,1009 19.445.62 4,995.25 27.751.50 1287530 213131 16,339.81
Total loss 25,998.52 564483 30,113.28 19,645.86 5,006.07 20,7140 13,136.79 2,140.87 16,357.00
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= ECL -Reconciliation

Amtin Lacs
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Loss Allowance as at 1st April 13,136.79 2,740.87 16,356.99
2017
Movemants during live vear
Addition / Reduction in Provision 213.41 59.04 (2,586.45)
Movements within stages (2,240.27) 1,515.01 18,653 76
Write-offs dunng the penod (172.72) {560.88) (11,020.01)
New Cases Addition 8,708.65 1,252.04 6.469.73
Loss Allowance as at 3ist 19,645.86 5,006.07 27,774.02
March 2018

Vi 1] h

Addition / Reduction in Provision (465.30) {97.07) (4,167.92)
Movements within stages (4,005.89) 1,686.50 23,959.51
Write-offs during the period (268.34) (1.073.28) {18,975.19)
New Cases Addition 11,092.19 122.61 1,522.86
Loss Allowance as at 31st 25,998.52 5,644.83 30,113.28
March 2019

(d) Credit risk mitigation

Cover Ratio to change

The be. w table shows the cover ratio of total NPA to gross earning asset for the portfolio

segmeni
. Corporate . .

Gross Non-Performing Loans Corporate Secured Unsecured Retail Secured Retail Unsecured
As at 15t April 2017 - e 110.39 23,973,942
Addiions/Reduction 0.06 3.88 (3,031.08) (2.479.76)
Impairments/Write oH (0.15) (4.69) (71.78) {16.225 98)
Mew cases additon 0.09 558 3,157.66 35.805 63
As on 31s1 March 2018 - 11.19 165.19 41,073.31
Cover Ratio 0.0% 0 0% 0.6% 29°
Additions/Reduction {0 06} (221 (3,199.02) {7.108 30)
[mpairments/Wnite off (G 6&) {113.29) {28 13047y
New cases addiion 0.06 368 3.304.58 39.256.69
As on 31st March 2019 - 6.19 157.47 45,131.24
Cover Ratio 0 0% 00% 0.5% 25
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company doesn't have sulfficient financiat resources to meet
its obligations as and when they fall due or will have 1o do so at an excessive cost. This risk
arises from the mismatches in the timing of the cash flows which is inherent in ail financing
operations and can be affected by a range of company specific and market wide evenis.
Therefore, Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting

obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset.

The Company has put in place an effeclive Asset Liability Management System, constituled

an Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCQO") headed by Managing Director & CEQ
of the Company.

The Company manages ils liquidity risk through a mix of strategies, including forward-
looking resource mobilization based on projected disbursements and maturing obligations.
ALCO is responsible for managing the company's liquidity risk via a combination of policy
formation, review and governance, analysis, siress testing, limit selting and monitoring.

Company’s borrowing program is rated by CRISIL & ICRA. Shorl term rating is A1+ and

long-term rating is AAA/Stable by both the agencies. There has been no change in ratings
from last 10 years.

The maturity pattern of items of non-derivative financial assets and Liabilities at
undiscounted principal and interest cash flows are as under:
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I statements

Description Upto 30/31 Over 1 month | Over 2 months | Over 3 months [ Over 6 months | Over 1 year to | Over 3 year to| Over 5 years Total ¢
days 3 5 i
Financial Liabilities
Debt securities 14,957 19.761 177.267 - - 150,976 44,971 407,932 |
Borrowings other than debt securilies 446.075 246.216 15,008 87.500 25,046 243 820,088
Subordinaled liabillies 4.999 9,990 79,859 24.832 119,680
Other Financial Liabilities 103.319 6,006 2,790 5.605 9,001 - 14,048 13.950 154,709
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 46.716 46,716
Banks Balances 4,326 4.326
Loans & Advances 579,408 283,247 216.270 309.434 194.309 193.023 15.182 1,790,873
Invesimenis 146 146
Olher Financial Assets 8,923 2,958 2,958 1,524 4,112 7,489 227 2,323 30,514
Maturity Analysis of Derivative financial liabilities :
Description Upto 30/31 Over 1 month | Over 2 months| Over 3 manths| Over & months| Over 1 year to| Over 3 yearto] Over 5 years Total
days 3 5

As at March 31, 2019
Forengn exchange forward contract 5.868 5.086 10} 10,943
As at March 31, 2018
Foreign exchange forward conlract 110 176 ZB5

As at April 01, 2017

| Foregn exchange forward conlract
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The table above details the Company's expected maturities for its non-derivative and
derivative financial instruments drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
including interest. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount

disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as iflustrated by
the yield curves at the end of the reporling period.

Following is the position of company’s undrawn limits as on respective year end dates:

[ Funding Facility | Total Facility | Drawn ] Undrawn |

March 31, 2019

Less than 1 year 1,400,000.00 1,032,071.90 367,928.10

Greater than 1 year 396,000.00 316,000.00 80,000.00
1,796,000.00 1,348,071.90 447,928.10

March 31, 2018

Less than 1 year 1,100,000.00 964,444.96 135,555.04

Grealer than 1 year 200,000.00 161,000.00 32,000.00
1,300,000.00 1,125,444.96 174,555.04

March 31, 2017

Less than 1 year 800,000.00 770,702.52 29,297 .48

Greater than 1 year 54,000.00 54,000.00 -

854,000.00 824,702.52 29,297.48

Other price risks

The Company is exposed to equily price risks arising from equity investments. The
Company's equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes.

Equity price sensitivity analysis
It equity prices had been 10% higher/lower: - Other comprehensive income for the year
ended March 31, 2019 would increase/decrease by Rs.14.62 Lakhs (for the year ended

March 31, 2018 increase/decrease by Rs. NIL) as a result of the changes in fair value of
equity investmentis measured al FVTOC,

Auditors’ remuneration (excluding GST/Service tax)

Professional fee includes auditors’ remuneration as follows:

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Audit lee 2303 2200
Quarterly Limited Review lee 4.50 4.50
Tax audit lee 250 230
Fee for other services 410 350
Reimbursement of expenses 203 203
Audit Tee Tor valuation purposes under Inconie Tax Act, 1961 - 300
Total Jo.18 39.55
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Movement of provision for reward points redemption and legal cases in accordance with
Accounting Standard 29; Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets is as

under:

Reward Points Movement*

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

a. Provision at the beginning of the year 31,626.36 23,005.76
b. Additions made during the year 44,950.32 33,578.22
¢. Interest Cost for the period 1,177.90 783.34
d. Amount redeemed/Paid during the year {30,026.02) (21,802.95)
¢. Amounts lapsed during the year (7,590.55) (7.565.34)
f. Actarial Gain / (Loss) 2,822.31 3.742.10
£, Movement on account of unpaid vendor liability 923.75 (114.76)
h. Provision at the end of the year (a+b+ct+d+e+f+g) 43,884.08 31,626.36

*

Provision for reward points as at 31 March'2019 includes provision as per actuarial

valuation of Rs. 41,503.49 lakhs {previous year Rs. 30,169.52 lakhs) and provision for
unpaid claims of Rs. 2,380.59 lakhs (previous year Rs. 1,456.84 lakhs)

Legal Claims:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 3 March 2018
a. Provision at the beginning of the year 25.61 11.86
b. Additions / (Reduction) made during the year (6.70) 2220
c. Amount Paid during the year 4.05 845
d. Provision at the end of the year (a+h-c) 14.86 25.61
Income and expenditure in faoreign currency
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31| ended k) |
March 2019 March 2018
Expenditure in foreign currency (on acerual basis)
Network and other service charges 23.817.04 14,818.93
Others 509.54 243.82
Finance Cost 8.253.88 1,787.30
Income in foreign currency (on acerual basis)
Business development incentive & Interchange income 27.583.83 14,161.74
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Related party disclosures

List of parties who have controlling interest or with whom transactions have laken place
during the year.

List of related parties

Holding Entity

State Bank of India
Joint venture

GE Capital Mauritius Overseas Investments (Till 16 December 2017)
Entity holding substantial interest in voting power of the Company
CA Rover Holdings (from 15 December 2017)

Fellow subsidiaries and entities

SBI Business Process Management Services Private Limited (from 15 December 2017)
SBI Capital Markels Lid.

SBICAP Securities Lid.

SBICAP Trustee Company Lid.

SBICAP Ventures Lid.

SBICAP (Singapore) Ltd.

SBICAP (UK) Ltd.

SBI DFHI Ltd.

SBI Global Factors Ltd.

SBI Infra Management Solutions Private Limited
SBI Mulual Fund Trustee Company Pvt Lid.
SBl Payment Services Pvt, Ltd.

SBI Pension Funds Pvt Lid.

SBI Business Process Management Services Private Lid. {(Erstwhile known as GE Capital
Business Process Management Services Pvt Lid.)

SBI General insurance Company Ltd.
SBlI Life Insurance Company Ltd.
SBI-SG Global Securities Services Put, Ltd.
SBI Funds Management Pwvt. Ltd.
SBI Funds Management (International) Private Ltd.
Commercial Indo Bank Lic, Moscow
Bank SBI Botswana Limited
SBI Canada Bank
State Bank of India (California)
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Epimoney Private Limited

Mazumah Advisors LLP

EPI Ventures Partners LLP

State Bank of India Services Limitada {Brazil)

SBI (Mauritius) Ltd.

PT Bank SBI Indonesia

Nepal SBI Bank Ltd.

Nepal SB! Merchant Banking Ltd.

C - Edge Technologies Lid.

5Bl Macquarie Infrastructure Management Pvt. Ltd.
SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trustee Pwvi. Lid.
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Management Pte. Ltd.
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Trustee Ltd,

Oman India Joint Investment Fund — Management Company Pwt. Lid.

Oman India Joint Investment Fund - Trustee Company Pwvt. Lid,
Jio Payments Bank Ltd.

S$BI Foundation (not for Profit Company)

SBI Home Finance Ltd,

Carlyle Asia Partners (from 15 December 2017)

Carlyle India Advisors Private Limited (from 15 December 2017)

SBI Business Process Management Services Private Limited (from 15 December 2017)

vi. Entity under common significant influence

SBI Business Process Management Services Privale Limited (till 15 December 2017)
GE India Industrial Private Limited (till 25 October 2017)

Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited (till 19 May 2017)
Sunil DRU LLC, Delaware, USA (from 15 December 2017)
Southern Botllers Private Limited (from 15 December 2017)
Punjab Beverages Private Limited {from 15 December 2017)

vii.  Key management personnel

Mr. Hardayal Prasad, MD and CEQ (from 01 February 2018)
Mr. Nalin Negi, CFO (From 01 September 2017)

Mr. Vijay Jasuja, CEQ (from 01 April 2017 till 14 December 2017}, MD and CEQ (from 15
December 2017 till 31 January 201 8)

Mr. Praveen Kumar Singh, CFO (lill 31 August 2017)
Ms. Payal Mittal, Company Secretary
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Signilicant accounting policies and notes 1o accounts

41.1. Transactions/balances outstanding with related parties for the Year ended/as at 31 March 2019

Juint Venturer

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Manapement Personnel

Particulars Holding Entity
A Transactions during the year 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19
Advertisement and sales promotion {incentives) 15505803 - - N
Cost allocations received® 479.78 - 423.39 .
Processing charees paid = - T8U81.29 =
Cost allocations made* = c 11.08 -
Right tssue shares 186444 1.357.78 - 5
Bank charges. fees and Commission Pud 149.37 - 19.00 -
Commission Recened - 295 -
Personne| Cost tManageril remunerabon- Saliries & = S 164,74
Personnel Cost i Managerial remuneration- Post
Employement Benilits) 5 S 47.98
Gratunty Tund contiibunion 5 739,74 .
Interest Income on lixed deposit 1.7 - - 5
Finance charges 64,327,313 - 58.75 S
Borrowings taken S.0AURTS S - -
Borrowings repraid 5,021 148.50 - 500.00 -
Income on investments R 5.88 _
[mvestments purchased - 19504100
Investments sold - 19.500.00
CSR Contnbution = 73,00 -
Ivadend Declared 60.1935 4 2.176.78
Fixed Deposit made . E -
Rovalty eapenses 1.577.80
Loisis and Advances given and ather adjustments 21833 78130 50.73
Loans and Adsances Repaid 22945 T768.97 56 66
Congubution o Other Fund 23.65
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Signilicant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Particulars Holding Company  Joint Venturer Fellow Subsidiaries Key Management Personnel
b. Balances Qutstanding at Year End

Trade Payables and Other liabilities 2377.78 g 6,071.48
Dividend Payable 0.195.44 2.176.78 -
Borrowings 874,7535.24 - 2,600.00
Interest Payable 858 - .
Cush and Bank Balunces™* 4.348.20 - -
Loans and Advanges®+* 9.83 - 66.85
Other non current assets (Fixed deposit) 27.00 - -
Invesiments - - 0.10
Other Recoverable - - -
Conrtibution to Other Fund - - .32
Interest Accrued 0.56 - -

All transactions with the related parties are at Arm’s length.
* The amounts are included/ adjusled in the respective expense line items of operating and other expenses.

** These amounts represent cash & bank balance, book overdraft, funds in transit & earmarked balances as at 31 March 2019.

" These amounts represent year-end balances oulstanding as at 31 March 2019 on credit cards issued.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
41.2. Transactions/balances outstanding with related parties for the sYear ended/as at 31 March 2018

Joint Venturer

Fellow

Key

Particulars Holding Entity
Subsidiaries and  Management
entities Personnel

w. Transuctions during the year 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18
Advertisement and sales promotion (ncentives) 12,963.51 = -
Cost allocations received 347.37 DN/ 0 FLIE] -
Processing charges paid - - 65.755.82 -
Cost allocations made - 1215 -
Bank charges. fees and Commission Pad I87.23 - 140.74 -
Cammussion Recened - S 0.4} -
Personnel Cost i Manazerial cemuneration- Salaries &
other Allowances) - R 164.99
Personnel Cost i Mamgerial remuneration - (ither
henitits) - _ _ 1856
Gratuity lund contribution - - 18.38 -
Interest inconwe on fixed deposit 1.23 5 - -
Finance charges H.734.21 - - -
Buorrowings ahen 4.870.435.61 - - -
Borrowings repaid 4. 717.216 86 - = -
Income on investments - 7.37 .
Investmients poirchased - 19.000.00 -
Investments sold S - 19.000.00 -
CSR Contrihution - . 198,73 R
Dividend Pad 4710100 314000 - -
Fixed Deposit made 25.00 - - 5
Royally expenses 726.26 5 = 5
Loans and Advanees given and other adjustments 3379 - 8.674.23 3192
Laans and Advances Reprid 327.66 8.681.57 31.57
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Significant accounting policies and notes to accountls

o Key
Particulars Holding Company  Joint Venturer ¥ ?".o“l. Mainugcment
Subsidiaries
Personnel

b. Balances Qutstanding at Year End -
Trade Payables and Other Liabilities 1,665.29 - 5,785.54 -
Borrowings 902,741.54 = -
Interest Accrued 1,306.47 « -
Cash and Bank Balances™* [8,986.13 = 2
Loans and Advances®#% 2().34 5293 0,49
Other non current asscts 27.00 -
Investments - - .10
Other Recoverahle 11694 - 28.74 -

* The amounts are included/ adjusled in the respeclive expense line items of operating and other expenses.

** These amounts represent cash & bank balance, book overdraft, funds in transit & earmarked balances as at 31 March 2018.

*** These amounls represent year-end balances outstanding as at 31 March 2018 on credit cards issued.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Annexure | to Note 41

Transactions/Balances Outstanding with Fellow Subsidiaries (Parties constituting 10%

or more in each category)

i Teansuctions duriog ihe year

March 31, 2019

Particalars For the yeur ended For the yeur eaded
30st March 20149 Jist March 2008
[nyestments puarchased
SI Fonds Manageiment 11§ insibed 13k S0HE00 [REHETRIEH
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The Company's exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated assets not hedged as on
31 March 2018 by derivative instruments or otherwise is USD 16.70 million (Rs 11,549.90
takhs) [ Previous year USD 6.24 (Rs. 4056.98)]. Similar amount for payable & other liabilities is
USD 5.19 million (Rs. 3586.58 lakhs) [Previous year USD 4.08 million (Rs. 2653.47 lakhs)).

Share based payments (amount in absolute)

Certain employees of the Company were entitled to shares of General Electric Company, USA,

under an equity-settled share-based compensation plan. Details of these plans are given
below.

The General Electric Company, USA, adopted the 2007 Long-term Incentive Plan {“the oplion
plan”} under which an initial amount of common stock was reserved for issuance to
employees. Options granted under the Option Plan could be stock options, restricted stock

units (RSU) or performance stock units (PSU). Incentive stock options can be granted only to
employees.

Effective 15th December 2017, GE Capital Mauritius Overseas Investment sold its 14% stake
in the company to State Bank of India and 26% stake in the company to CA Rover Holdings
(26%). Consequently, no amount in relation to share based compensation is payable to GE
Capital. Therefore, the stock options ceased to exist in books as on 31 March 2018.
Accordingly, the share-based employee compensation cost in Capital Reserve of Rs.
4,135,927 is transferred to General Reserve as on March 31, 2018. Additionally, short term
provision of Rs. 1,199,951 and long-term provision of As. 127,797 stands extinguished and
has been written back during the year ended 31 March 2018 to the Profit and Loss account,
under the head ‘liabilities/ provision written back'.

With respect to the stock options existed till 15th December 2017, as prescribed by the
Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and related interpretations, the Company applied the fair
value-based method of accounting to account for stock options and restricted stock units
issued by General Electric Company, USA, to the employees of the Company. The fair market
value of such instruments is recognised as an expense over the period in which the related
services are received. Accordingly, fair value of the stock options and restricted stock units is

amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the stock options and stock
appreciation rights.

The employees’ compensation expense for Stock options and RSU's during the year ended 31
March 2019 amounts to Rs. NiL (Previous year ended March 31, 2018 As. NIL)

The company has not granted any stock options in the last three years.
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Movements in share options during the year

The following reconciles the share options outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
ended March 31, 2019

Weighted average Weighetd average

Patticulars Stock  Weighted average  remaining ASU's remaining

Options  exerciseprice  contracival ife (numbers  Weighetd average  contractuallife

(Numbers) {USD) {years) ) exercise price (Rs. ) lyears)

Balance as at Apnil 01, 2017 11,150 218t 522 S .

Grantad dusing the year - g

Forfeited during the year . .

Exercised during the year 1.000 2022

Expired duting tha vear 10,150

Balance as af March 31, 2018 0

Granted during the year

Forteited during the year

Exercised duting the year

Expired during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2019

As the Guidance Note is applicable for options granted post 1 April 2005, information
slated above is only with elfect from such date.

Risk free interest rates reflect the yield on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities.
Expected dividend yields presume a sel dividend rate. Expected volalilities are based
on implied volatilities from traded oplions and historical volatility of our stock.

The fair value of each restricted stock unit is the market price of the stock on the date
of Grant.

Leases
Operating lease: Company as lessee

Leasing Arrangements

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements primarily for office
premises under non-cancellable operating lease. The lease term is for one to ten years

and is renewable at the mutual agreement of both the parties. Some of the significant
terms and conditions for the arrangements are:

* Agreements are generally be terminated by either party by serving one to twelve
months’ notice or by paying the notice period rent in lieu thereof.

* The lease is generally renewable on the expiry of lease period subject to mutual
agreement.

* No subletting of the premises or any part thereof is permissible without the prior
consent of lesser.
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= The Company has no obligation towards the owner in case of damage to the property
on account of risk factors like fire, strikes, riots, natural calamities etc.

Payments recognised as an expense

Parliculars AsatMarch 31,2019  AsatMarch 31,2018 As at April 01, 2017
Minimum lease payments 904.55 869.68 551.08
Confingent rentals - . .
Total 904.55 869.68 551.08

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases for offices are
as follows:

Particulars AsatMarch 31,2019 Asal March 31,2018 As at April 01, 2017

Within one year 671.96 597.81 41425
After one year but not more than five years 1,510.52 1.413.54 565.52
More than 5 Years 106.24 32.98 111.07
Total 2,288.72 2,044.34 1,090.84

Obligation under finance lease

The Company has acquired vehicles on finance lease during current and earlier years. The
term for lease is between 3-5 years with monthly equated instalments beginning from the
month subsequent to the commencement of the lease. The Group has options to purchase the
equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the lease terms. The Group's obligations under
finance leases are secured by the lessors' title to the leased assels. The present value of total
minimum lease payment liability as al 31st March 2018 is Rs. 30,837,426. Rate of interest for
finance lease obligation (vehicles) is varying belween 11.00% to 11.25%.
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Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018 As at Aprit 01, 2017
Total minmimum lease payament outstanding

Due wilhtn ong year 145.70 125.72 100.30
Due later than ona year and not laler than five years 281.67 274.07 135.74
Tatal 427.37 399.79 236.03
Less: futyre finance charges

Due within one year 44.48 40.28 22.13
Dua Iater than ona year and not later than five ygarg 47.43 51.13 17.50
Total 91.91 91.41 39.63
Present valus of minimum lease payment

Due within one year 101.21 85.44 7947
Dus later than one year and not later ihan five years 234.24 222,94 118.24
Total 335.48 308.37 196.41

Statement showing net carrying value of assets under finance lease

Particulars As at March 31, 2019  As atMarch 31,2018 Asat April 01, 2017
Vehicle onlease

Gross amount 561.79 42041

Accumulated Depreciations : 20127 76.93

Net Book Value 360.52 34248 195.64*
* refer note no 14

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution
plans, for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The

contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules
of the schemes.

Padiculars As atMarch 31,2019  As atMarch 31,2018 As at April 01, 2017

Provident Fund 5§67.99 458.31 346 54
Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) 033 0.10 0.00
Contribution to National Pension Schema 23.65 . -
Labour Welfare Fund 0.95 0.79 0.63
Total 592,92 459.20 347.17
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Significant accounting pelicies and notes to accounts

Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Under the gratuity plan,
every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure

at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme of
gratuity is unfunded.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars As at March 31,2019  As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Discount rate 7.65% 7.65% 7.00%
Future Salary Increase/Salary ascalation 10.00% 10.50% 10.50%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 60 Yaars 60 Years
Mortality Tables” 201214 2006-00 2006-08
Employee tumover

From 21 to 30 years 10.00%

From 31 to 40 years 14.00% 112 115
From 41 1o 50 years 15.00% i

From 41 to 50 years 0.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of

inflation, seniority, promotion & Other relevant factors, such as supply & demand in the
employment market.

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in
moitality/ others.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the
statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance
sheet for the gratuity plan. The present value cf the defined benefit obligation and the related
current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
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Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefits expense recognized in the employee cost:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Current service cost 222.18 163.21 100.56
Past service cost - - e
Administration expenses - - -
Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 45,59 18.89 {(1.17)
(Gains) / losses on setlement - . .
Components of defined benefil costs recognised i 267.78 182.10 99.39
Aemeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

Changes in financial assumptions {56.45) {73.37) 39.61
Changes in demographic assumptions {39.41) 73.67 85.89
Experience adjustments 111,43 147.64 99,72
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts include (9.02) 14.47 (4.73)
Adjusimants for restrictions on the defined benafit asset S =
Qomponents of defur[ed _beneht costs recognised 655 162,41 250,48
in other comprehensive income

Total 274.33 344.51 319.87

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the
‘Employee benefits expense’ line item in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive
income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its
defined benelfit plans is as follows;

Particutars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Present value of funded defined benefit obligatior 1,459.63 1.239.39 918 59
Fair value of plan assets {1,269.09) {593.3% (598 72}
Net funded obligation status 190.53 646 00 31987

Reslrictions on asset recognised

Net liability arising from defined benefit obliga 180.53 646.00 318.87
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Opening defined benefil abligation 1.239.39 91859 600.71
Current service cost 222.18 16.32 10056
Past service cosl e . -
Interest cost 90.75 60 80 40 87
Remeasurement {gains)/losses due 10
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes (56 45} (73.37) 3981
Actuarial gains and losses arising from charges (39.41) 7367 8589
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experier 111.43 147.64 9972
Benelils paid (108 28) (51.15) (48.76)
Liabilities assumed/{seitled)’
Liabilities extinguished on selllements - - -
Liabilities assumed in a business combination -
Exchange differences on foreign plans . -
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,453.63 1,082.50 918.59

Sensitivity Analysis:

Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to
small changes in demographic assumptions. The key actuarial assumptions to which the
benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary
escalation rate. The following table summarizes the change in defined benelit obligation and
impact in percentage terms compared with the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of

the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption
by 50 basis points

Particulars AsalMarch 31,2019 Asat March 31,2018 As at April 01, 2017
Discount Rate

impact of increase 50 bps on Defined benelit obligation AT 4.20% -382%
Impact of Decrease 50 bps on Defined benedit cbligatian 337 450% 3B

Salary Esclation rate
Impact of increase 50 bps on Defined benefit obtigation 387 436" 3717
tmpact of Decrease 50 bps on Defined benefi obiigaton -85 4 11% 3 52%

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in
isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting

date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.
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Projected plan cash flow:

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current
membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

Maturity Profile As at March 31,2019  As at March N, 2018 As at April 01, 2017,
Expected Benefits for 1 year 170.96 106.13 99.91
Expected Benefits for 2 year 163.53 112.68 99.28
Expected Benalits for 3 year 161.42 114,95 100.92
Expected Banelits for 4 year 156.30 117.00 99.49
Expected Benefits for Syear 149,38 117.23 96.11
Expected Bensfits for 6 year 148.40 11522 91.23
Expected Benefits for 7 year 128.27 118.02 86.60
Expected Benefits for 8 year 171.09 110.65 8219
Expected Benefits for 9 year 96.86 128.77 76.00
Expectad Bensfits for 10 year and Above 1,733.04 1,796.88 904.24
weighted average duration to the payment of 7.68 8.69 7.46
these cash flowa (in Years)

Compensated absences

An actuarial valuation of compensated absences has been carried out by an independent
acluary based on the following assumption;

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2019~ As at March I, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Discount rate 7.65% 7.65% 7.00%
Futura Satary Increase/Saiary escalation 10.00% 10.50% 10.50%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years

Mortality Tables® 201214 2006-08 2006-08
Employaa tumover

From 21 to 30 years 10.00%

From 31 to 40 years 14,00% 5 =

Fram 41 to 50 years 15.00% (i) R
From 41 to 50 years 0.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of

inflation, seniority, promotion & Other relevant factors, such as supply & demand in the
employment market,

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in
monrtality/ others.
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Defined Benefit Obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the
Company are as foliows:

Particulars AsalMarch 31,2019  AsatMarch31,2018  Asat April 01, 2017
Defined benefit obligation 498.42 468.00 347.16
Closing defined benefit obligation 498.42 468,00 KLYAL

Long service award

An actuarial valuation for Long Service Awards to employee has been carried out by an
independent actuary based on the following assumption:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Discount rate 7.65% 7.65% 7.00%
Increasa in Cost of Award 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Retirement Age (yaars) 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality Tablag* 2012-14 2006-08 2006-08
Employee tumover

From 21 to 30 years 10.00%

From 31 to 40 years 14.00% o o
From 41 to 50 years 15.00% Uik Utk
From 41 to 50 years 0.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of

inflation, seniority, promotion & Other relevant factors, such as supply & demand in the
employment market.

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in
moriality/ others.

Defined Benefit Obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the
Company are as follows:;

Particuiars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Dalined benelit obligation 178.79 15412 84,42
Closing defined benafit obtigation 178.79 15412 B4.42
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Contingent liabilities

As at March 31, As at April 01,

Particulars 2019 As at March 31, 2018 2017
Claims against Ihe Group not acknowledged as debt

a) Demand natices from Service 1ax department 267795 247734 25180
{b} Claims against the company in the ordinary course of business 1,198.11 1,022.71 S4147
{b) Guarantees 527,100 27.00 200
Tolal 4,403.06 352705 3,062.88
Pre-deposit against claims 1762 11.81 12.32

Based on Demand notices received from Tax Authorities, the Company is contingently liable
for Rs. 2,677.95 lakhs (previous year 2477.34 iakhs). The Company has challenged these
demands of the tax authorities. While the ultimate outcome of the above-mentioned appeals
cannot be ascertained al this time, based on current knowledge of the applicable law,
Management believes that these law suits should not have a material adverse effect on the

Company's financial statements or business operations. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in the books of account.

Certain show cause notices relating to indirect 1axes matters amounting to Rs. 471.70 lakhs
(previous year Rs. 45.28 lakhs) and interest as applicable, have neither been acknowledged
as claims nor acknowledged as contingent liabilities. Based on inlernal assessment and

discussion with tax advisors, the Company is of the view that the possibility of any of these tax
demands materializing is remote.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Segment reporting disclosed by the Company in this section is presented in accordance
with the disclosure’s requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”,

Definition of the operating segments of the Company is based on the identification of the
various activities performed which generate revenues and expenses, while also taking into
consideration the organizational structure approved by the Board of Directors for business

management purposes. Based on these segments, management analyses the main operating
and financial metrics for the purpose of taking resource allocation decisions and assessing the

Company's performance. The Company has not aggregated any operating segments for
presentation purposes.

There is only reportable segment (*'Credit cards'") an envisaged by Ind AS 108 "Segmenit
reporting, specified under section 133 of the Companies act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. Further, the economic environment is which the Company
operates is significantly similar and not subject lo materially ditferent risk and rewards.
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Accordingly, as the Company operates in a single business and geographical segment, the

reporting requirement for primary and secondary disclosures prescribed by Ind as 108 are not
required to be given.

Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and
documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 (‘Acl’). Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation
lo be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the
documentation for the domestic and international transactions entered into with the associated
enterprises during the financial year and expecls such records to be in existence latest before
the due date for filing of return under the Act. The management is of the opinion that its
domestic and international transactions are at arm'’s length so that the aforesaid legistation will

not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and
that of provision for taxation.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal account and nol provided
for {(net of advances) amounted to Rs. Nil {previous year Rs. Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2019 the company appropriated Rs 15757.27 lakhs
(previous year Rs. 7262.59 lakhs) towards the Statutory Reserve (Reserve Fund) in
accordance with Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

In respect of accounls receivables, the Company is regularly generating and dispatching
customer statements on periodic interval wherever transactions or oulstanding are lhere. In
case of disputes with regard to billing, there is a process of resolution and adjustments are
carried out on regular basis. Moreover, in respect of accounts payable, the Company has a
process of receiving regular balance confirmation from its vendors. The balances are
reconciled with the balance confirmation received and discrepancies, if any are accounted on
regular basis. For the year end balances of Account Receivables, Account Payables and
Loans & Advances, the management is of the opinion that adjustments, if any required through

the above-mentioned process, will not have any material impact on the financials of the
company.

The company has deposited GST on Interchange Income for the period April 2018 to
December 2019 considering them as intra-state supplies. However, post receiving bank wise
details of such Interchange from network pariners, such supplies are held as Inter-state
transaction for which IGST is applicable. Consequently, company has filed a refund claim
under Section 77 of the CGST Act of Rs. 10841 lakhs. However, the said refund is subject to
interpretation of law in view of the above, the company has provided for 100% provision
against the refund claim to mitigate lhe uncertainty risk,

The company has been depositing GST on Interchange received by it in respect of VISA
International transactions. However, in February 2019, company has received a declaration
from VISA that Settlement of international Interchange is being done in INR as per approval of
RBI oblained by VISA in 1995. Basis the said declaration, the company has obtained opinion
from legal firm confirming that the same can be treated as receipt of consideration in
convertible foreign exchange and consequently as export of service and therefore not
chargeable to GST. Company has accordingly decided to stop paying GST on International
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Interchange hencetorth and has decided to file a refund application for Rs. 1106 lakhs for the
GST paid from July 2017 to February 2019 with GST authorities. The said refund is subject to
interpretation of law for which there is no precedence in the form of judgements/ departmental

clarifications. In view of the above, the company has provided for 100% provision against the
refund claim to mitigate the uncenainty risk.

Scheme of Amalgamation

The company has filed a joint petition seeking to merge “SBI Card and Payment Services
Private Limited” (“SBICPSL") and "SBi Business Process Management Services Private
Limited” ("SBIBPMSL"), the back end entity engaged in the business of inter alia rendering
credit card processing and business process management services to the transferee company
(SBICPSL) with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”"), New Delhi which is
pending adjudication. The aforesaid petition has been preferred on behalf of “SBIl Card and
Payment Services Private Limited” (“SBICPSL") seeking to merge “SBI Business Process

Management Services Private Limited” (“SBIBPMSL") whereby SBICPSL shall be the surviving
entity post-merger.

The scheme of amalgamation provides for business combination under pooling of interest
method, wherein with efiect from appointed date (ist April 2018) and upon this Scheme
becoming effeclive, the Transferor Company, together wilh all its properties investments,
assets, rights, benefits and interests, shall be transferred to and vested in and be deemed to
have been transterred to and vested in and managed by the Transferee Company, as a going
concern, without any furlher instrument or deed or act, subject to the provisions of this Scheme
and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable
provisions of the Act, Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable laws, by
virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

The Transferee Company shall, upon the Scheme becoming operative, record the assets and
liabilities of the Transferor Company vested in it pursuanl to this Scheme in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the 2013 Act.

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities to be reflected at their carrying amounts.
No adjustments are to be made to reflect fair values or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
The only adjustments that will be made are to harmonize accounting policies.
The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior pericd shall be restated
as il business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the aclual date of combination to be in line with the Ind AS

103 guidelines, However, if business combinalion had occurred alfter that date, the prior period
information shall be restated only from that date.

Accordingly, upon this Scheme becoming effective, the shareholders of the Transteror

Company shall be entitled to receive equity shares of the Transferee Company in accordance
with the following share exchange ratio:

For every 100 (One Hundred) fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10 each held in the Transferor
Company, the shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be entitled to receive 403 (Four

Hundred) fully paid-up equily shares (“Exchange Shares”) of Rs. 10 each of the Transferee
Company (“Share Exchange Ratio").
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The Share Exchange Ratio has been determined by the Boards of the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company based on the Valuation Report and their independent judgment
and evaluation. The fully paid-up equity shares of the Transferee Company to be issued, free
from all encumbrances, to the shareholders of the Transieree Company shall, upon this

Scheme becoming effective, rank pari passu in all respects to the existing fully paid-up equity
shares of Transferee Company.

The matter was listed for final hearing on 1st April 2019 and post hearing the Hon'ble Bench of
the NCLT was pleased to reserve the order. However, order has nol yet been pronounced as

on date. Upon pronouncement of the Order by the NLCT and filing of necessary forms with the
Registrar of Companies, the order will be effective.

The company recognised following expenses in relation to aforesaid transaction and proposed
scheme of merger with SBI BPMSL in the staternent of Proiit and Loss account

Particulars Amount

Professional & consultancy fees 28.50

Explanation of transition to Ind AS:

The transition as al April 01, 2017 to Ind AS was carried out from Indian GAAP. The
exemptions and exceptions applied by the Company in accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time

adoplion of Indian Accounting Standards, the reconciliation of equity and total comprehensive
income is explained below.

Exemptions from retrospective application: The Company has applied the following
exemption(s):

(a) In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the company opted to consider

previous GAAP carrying value of property, plant and equipment as deemed cost on
transition date.

(b) In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the company opted to determine
whether an arrangement existing at the date of transition contains a lease based on facls

and circumstances existing at the date of transition rather than at the inception of the
arrangement.

(c) In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the company opted to apply the
provisions of day one gain or loss provisions prospectively on transactions occurring on
or after the date of transition to Ind-AS and has not evaluated historical dala.

Reconciliation of equity and comprehensive income as previously reported under Indian GAAP
to Ind-AS:

]



SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
{Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Asal Asal
Pariculaes Noteho. — yorchst, 218 April 01, 2017
IEquily as reported under IGAAP 181,401.93 145,088.97
4. Ind-AS Adiusiments that lead to increase in equity:
Recognition of bomovings using effective interest rate [ u2 9239
Amortisation of card acquisition cosl 2 KIRFTE ]| 16,802.02
Business development incentive income k! 6,680.53 3917.04
Fair valuation of derivatives 4 1739 0.00
b. Ind-AS Adiustments that lead to decrease in equity:
Recogrition of loan processing fee using effective interest ratg 5 {3.052.38) (2:347.36)
Impaiment of financial assels as per Ind AS 109 {Expected credit loss) 6 (7,577.66) (18,567.27)
Deferred tax adjustment 7 (11,560.15) 5.3
Restatement of prior perioditems a (197.88) 0.00
Equity as reporied under Ind-AS 203,046.93 145,022.15

For the year andad

Partlcufars March 31, 2018
Profit as reported under IGAAP 36.312.96
a. Increasa (decrease) in net incoms for:
Recognition of borrewings using effectiva inferest rate 1 (58,16}
Amartisation of card acquisition cost 2 20,341.39
Business davelopment incentiva income (anticipated basis) 3 2,762.49
Fair valuation of derivatives 4 17391
Recagnition of loan processing fee using eHective intarest rate 5 (705.82)
Impairmant of financial assets as per Ind AS 109 (Expected credit loss) | 10,989.61
Deferred tax adjusiment of GAAP adjustments 7 (11,595,52)
Restatement of priar pesiad items 8 (197.89)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in other g 106.20
camprehensiva income under ind AS {net of tax)
Total effect of transition to Ind AS 21.814.02
Profit for the year as perind AS 58,130.98
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the periad ] {106.20)
Totat comprehensive income aa feported under Ind AS 58,024.73

Notes:

1. Under Ind-AS borrowings are measured at effective interest rate as a result of which any
upfront fees paid on borrowings is recognized over the usage Pattern of the loan. Under
older Indian GAAP such upfront fees are charged off when they were payable and interest
cost is recognized based on the contractual interest rate,

2. Under Ind AS, the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are recognized
as an asset it the entity expects to recover those costs from future revenue. The incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that an entity incurs to obtain a contragt with a
Customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Under older
Indian GAAP all incremental costs are charged off to statement of profit and loss when
incurred.

3

Under Ind AS for contracts with variable considerations, revenye is recognized based on the

anticipated revenue in future. Under older Indian GAAP, such income was recognized after
fulfilling the conditions associated with such arrangements,

a0
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Signifteant accounting policies and notes te accounts

As per Ind-AS 109, all derivatives are recognized at fair vaiue. Under older Indian GAAP, the
company amortized the premiu

m paid on forward contract as an expense over the life of the
contract.

Under Ind AS, the initial fee received have been deferred and amortized over the life of the

loan using the effective interest rate and

Under Ind AS the Company recognizes loss allowances on loans (and other financia assets)
at an amouni equal to the 12-month expected credit loss and a life time expected credit Joss
for cases where lhere is a significant increase in credit risk of the borrower. Under older
Indian GAAP, Company follows Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
(IRACP) norms for impairment of loans and advances given to customers.

Consequential deferred tax on all the above adjustments are taken into consideralion.

During the financial year 2017-18, Royally expenses was understated by Rs. 302.61 lakhs.

As this error was mada in the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the balances as at March
31, 2018 were adjusted as follows:

Particulars Impact Amount
Provision for expenses Increase 302.61
Provision for taxes Decrease 104,73
Retained earnings Decrease 197.88

As per Ind-AS 19, actuarial gain and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income
(net of tax} and not reclassified to profit and loss in a subsequent period.



SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

55,

SEBI Disclosure requirement (circular No HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dt Nov'18)

Information as per annexyre- | applicable to identified large corporate is as follows:

Sr.No Particulars

Details

1 Name of the company g\?tl (L?:ards and Payment Services
2 CIN

UB5999DL 1998PTC093849

Oulstanding borrowing of company
3 | as on 31st March 2019 (inRscr) | Fs 13:476.99 Crores

Highest Credit Raling During the

4 Previous FY along with name of the AAA/Stable by CRISIL & ICRA
Credit Rating Agency

Name of Stock Exchange in which

the fine shall be paid, in case of .
5 shortfall in the required borrowing BSE Limited
under the framework

The initial information has been filed with listing depariment of BSE limited,




SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Signilicant accounting policies and notes to accounts
56.  Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financiat Com

Paragraph 13 of Non- Banking Financial Companies

Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007:

pany as required in terms of
(non-deposit accepting or holding)

Particolurs As at As at
Linbilities side: ) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loans and advances availed by the
NBFC's inclusive of interest accrued .-\mmm'l Amount overdue '\""""!' Amount overdue
n outstanding oulstanding
thereon byt not paid:
{a) Debentures ; Seeured
: Unsecured I5627.4, 160,785,830
(Other than falling within the measing of
public deposits)
by Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
) Inter-corparate loans and
horrowing
() Commercial Paper 211.984.32 133910148
3] Other Loans
- Extemal commercial borrowings
= Cash/Credit Loans? §14.752,12 73h226.11
- Finance lease obligation RELR g7

It includes working capital demand loan and foreign currency non-resident borrowings.

Amount Amount
e outstanding oulstnding
.\.\scl'\ LI As at March 31, | Asat March 3,
2019 2018
Break-up of Loans and Advances
2 lincluding bills receivables [other than
those included in (4) below):
(i} Secured* 24.781.11) 26,293.29
(b} Unsecured™ 1.827.848.24 1.4300.686.63
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on
3 [hire and other ussets counting towards
ALFC activities
i) Lease assets incliding lease rentals
under sundry debrors:
() Financial lease Nil Nil
(h) Opuerating lease Nil ~Nil
1}y Stock on hire including hire churges Nil .
under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire Nil Nil
th) Repossessed Assets Nil N
III). .(?tllc:‘ lvans counting tuwards AFC Nil il
activities
(1} , Loans where assets have been Nl Y
repossessed
(h) Laans other than (i) above Nil Nil
93




SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Sipnificant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Amount Amount
. sutstanding outstanding
GCIC L) As at March 31T As at March 31,
2619 2018
Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments -
l. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nit
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v) Others Nil Nit
2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b} Preference Nit Nil
(if) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
4 [(v) Others Nil Nil
Long Term investments:
l.  Quoted:
£} Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
{iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v) Others Nil Nil
2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity 146,31 Nil
(b} Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nii
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nii Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v} Others Nil Nit

* It Includes advances to cradit card customers only.

5 [Borrower group-wise chassification of assels financed as in {2) and i3) chove:
Amount net of provisians
Calegory Asat Magch 31, 2019 Asat March 31, 2018
Secired Lnsoeured Toal Secuied Unsecured Tl

L. Related Pastics
(3} Subsidiaries . . . . .
(b)  Compasies in the s3me group . 70,69 1669 AL 345
fob  Ocher relaied panies . 035 0.35 3850 3880
2. Other than retated paries HAT3 76612879 4,790,795 69 X413 137836644 LA J50 2

Total HA673.90 1,766,198.52 119047271 1,110.12 13784014 144,533.96)
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
{Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current

and long term} in shares and securitics (el quened and

unguoted}:
As at March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 2018
— anu_c .’ Book Value Mot V:nlu.ul Book Value (Ney
Category Break up or Mair (Net of Provisions) Break up or fuir of Prosisinns)
valie or NAV o vitlue or NAYV
I. Related Parties
(@) Subsidiarics Nil Nit Nii Nil
() Companies in the same group 10 (110 0. 011
€y Ovder related parties Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Other than eelated parties 146.11 146.2} Nil Nil
Total 146.31 146.31 il .10
7 |Other Intormation et ;(I";;Lh 3L As at ZN‘I;:;CII s1G
Gross Non-Pcrt'orming Assets
(i) (a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties 45,294.89 41,249 .69
Net Non-Pcrt‘orming Assats
i (a) Rclmcd partics
(h) Other than related partics

{in]Assets acquired in satisfaction of deby

[£a]
Lh




SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Disclosure of Restructured Accounts

57.
S Type ol Restructuring Under CDR Lnder SME Debt Others
No. Asset Classification Details :; :: g l”) Total g g ? Total r; :: ;3 l: Total
Restrtictured accounts Nu. ol borrowers - |- |- |- - - ). - = 5 14081~ |- 1408
I fason | April 18 Amount oulstaading « |- |- |- = - e | 5 = 735471(- |- 735
Provision thercon = J-q1- 1- - - f- |- - - 495831 |- 496
No. of borrowers = |- f-1- - = f-1- - - 8- |- 320
2 Fresh restructuring duving he year Amount outstanding - f- |- |- - - f- q- - S 842.781- |- 843
Provision thereon - - [- |- - = d- - - - 56145]- |- 561
No. of borrowers - J-1- - - - j- - - - M6j- |- 306
3 |Upgradations w restruciured standard catesory Amount outsianding = 1= 1- - - - |- |- S - - |- |- S
Provision thereon - {- |- |- - - |- |- = 5 < |- - T
Restreciured standard advances which cease (o attract higher No. of horrowers - - ] |- e - |- ]- S 5 - |- 1.
4 Jprovisioning and / or additionat risk weight at the end of the FY and  [Amount outstanding - |- - 1- - - |- 1- S s - 1. |- .
hence aeed not be shown as restructured standard advances af 1he Provision thereon = - 1~ |- - - - |- - - - [ |- S
No. ol borrowers - |- 1- |- - - |- I- - 5 ausf- |- 695
5 [Downgradations of restruciured aceounts during the FY Amount outstanding = - 1- |- - o -l - 26430 (- |- 204
Provision thereon - J-1-1- - - I- - - - 176,07 - |- 176
No. of borrowers = 1- - 1- - e - . 427. 1. 12
6 (Wrie-ofts of restructured accounts doring the FY Amouint vutstanding S R e - = - - - - 32590 |- A
Provision thereon - fa |- |- - - (- - - - 2171 - |- i
No. of borrowers - - Je ]- - -l 1- s - - 1. .
7 [Adgustnents as on 3150 Mar'T9 for payment/proyision Amount received - - |- |- - - j- |- - S T340 - |- 745
Provision adjusimenis - - - |- - - J- |- 5 - N .
No. ol borrowers = 1-1-1- - = 1-1- - - L185)- |- LI85
& JRestructured Accounts as on 31st March 2019 (8 No 142-34-3-6-7F [ Amown aulstanding - J-1-i- - = |- 1- - - 535.901- |- 536
Pravasion thereon < |- 1~ 1- - = 1-1- - - s |- 357
* The Origimal Tormal dues not contain these particulars details
# A: Standard assets B: Sub-standard assets C: Doubtiul assets D: Loss assets
Nole 1 Restructured assets are now classilied as stige 3 assets and accordingly provision on the same s created as per ECL method prescribed under IND AS 109
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(Figures in Rupecs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes o accounts

58. Additional Disclosures

58.1. Capital
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
' o 2019 2018
i) CRAR (‘%) 18,634 16,98
ii) CRAR - Tier | Capiral (%) 13,30 10,974
iii) CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 5344 6.01%
iv Amnu'nl 91 subordinated debt raised s Tier- 120,000 100,000
IT capital*
v Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt _
Instruments
*Qualifying amount as Tier || Capital as at 31 March 2019 is Rs 91,000 lakhs {Previous
ear Rs. 80,706.23 lakhs). Fresh subordinated debt raised as Tier I during Financial
Year 2018-19 is RAs. 25,000 lakhs (Previous year Rs 50,000 lakhs).
58.2, Investments

:\S H14
March 31, 2019

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

I Value ol lnvestments
(1) Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India
(b) Owside India
(ii) Provisions lor Depreciation
() In India
(b} Outside india
{iii) New Value off Investments
(a) In India
(b)) Ouside India
2 Movement of Provisions held lowards
depreciation on investments

146

|46

(1) Opening balanee

(it} Add: Provisions maddg during the year
(i) Less: Write-olT 7 write-b
(v) Closing balance

ack of excess

0.10

R}
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SBi CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

58.3. Derivatives
Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
For the year For the yeur
S, No. Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

3] The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nil

(i) [Losses which would be incurred if
counterparties fuiled 1o (ulfill their obligations Nil Nil
under the agreements

(iii) F?nllnlcral required by the NBFC upon entering Nil Nil
into swaps

(iv)  |Concentration of eredit risk arising from the Nil Nil
swaps

{v) The fair value of the swap book Nil Nil

58.4. Exchange Traded interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
For the year For the year
5. No, Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2019 | Mareh 31, 2018

{1) Notional principal amount of exchange traded Nil Nil
IR derivatives undernaken during the year

(iiy  [Notional principal amount of exchange traded Nil Nil
IR derivatives outstanding

(i} [Notional principad amount of exchange traded Nil Nil
IR derivatives vutstanding and not “highly
effective”

(iv)  IMark-to-markel value of exchange traded IR Nil Nil
derivatives outstanding and not “highly
elicctive”
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SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
{Figures in Rupees takhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure

For the year ended March For the year ended
31, 2019 March 31, 2018
8. No, Particulaes Currency Interest Rute Currency | Interest Rute
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives | Derivatives
i |Derivatives (Notinnal Principal Amount)
Hedged Assets §64.63 Nil Nil Nil
{USD 12.5)
Hedged Liabilities- Logn 140000 Nil 97.500 Nil
(USD 1901.8) (USD [494.4)
Hedged Liabilities- Interests 30.78 Nil L169.71 Nil
{USD 1.74) (USD 1841
(i) [Marked to Market Positions
) Assel (+) 1033 il Nil Nil
b) Liability (-) (1095347 Nil (28331 Mil
(i) |Credit Exposure Nil il Nil Nil
fiv)_ JUnhedged Exposures 1513648 il Nil Nil
Refer nate no 37

28




SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

58.6. Disclosures relating to Securitisation

S. No. Particulurs Year ended March Year ended
31, 2019 March 3, 2018
I INo L)I:SPYS spnnsnrcq by the NBIEC for Nii Nil
secunisation transactions
I [Totl amount of seeuritised assets as per Nil Ni)
books of the SPV; sponsored
3 [Total amount of exposures retained by the
NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of Nil Nil
balance sheet
) Ofi-balance shect eXposures Nil Nil
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
b) On-balance sheet exposures Nil Nil
First loss Nii il
Others Nil Nii

4 |Amount of LXposures o securitisation Nil Nil
transactions other than MRR
4) Off-halance sheer eXposures

i} Exposure 10 own securitizations

First loss Nil Nii
Ohers Nil Nil
it} Exposure 1o third party securitisations
First loss Nit Nil
Others Nil Nil
) On-halance sheet cxXposures
1) Exposure (o own securitisations Nil Nl
First loss Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
i1} Exposure 10 third panty securilisations
First losy Nii Nil
Others Nil Nil
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(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

RVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts
58.7. Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for
Asset Reconstruction
S. No Particulars Year ended March|  Year ended
o ‘ 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(1) |No. of accounts Nil Nil
(i) |Aggregate value {net of provisions) of Nil Nil
i
dccounts sold to SC/RC
(iii) |Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv) [Additional consideration realized in respect Nil Nil
. . 1
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) |Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil
58.8. Defails of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs
S. No Particulars Year ended March|  Year ended
o ’ 31,2019 March 31, 2018
() [No. ol accounts Nil Nil
(i) [Aggregate value {net of provisionsy of Nil Nil
accounts sold
{iii} |Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv} [Additional consideration realized in respect Nil Nil
of accounts transterred in earlier yuurs
() JAggresate gain / loss over net hook valuye Nil Nil
58.9. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
. For the year ended|For the year ended
Particulars
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
| (@) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b} Aggregate outstanding Nil il
Of these, number of acconnts restrielured . .
(a . Nil Nil
% during the year
{h) Aggregate outstanding Nil Ni

101
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(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold;

Particulars For the year ended|For (he year ended
’ March 31,2019 March 31,2018
| () No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
(b) Aggresate outstanding Nil Nil
2(a) Asggrezate consideration received Nil Nil

*The company has not sold any Non-Performing Financial Assels,




58.10.

SBI CARD AND PAYMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Figures in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019

: Over 1 month | Over2 months | Over3d months | Over 6 months Over1year& | Over3years &

Paniculars | Upto 3031 days upto 2 months_|_upto 3 manths | upto 6 months upto 1 year upto 3 years upto 5 years e Total
Deposits R -
Advances 579,408 283,247 216,270 309434 194,309 193,023 15,182 1,780,874
Invesiments . . . . . . . 146 146
Bosrovings * 461,038 265.977 192,275 92,499 25,045 161,210 124,830 24,832 1,347,699
Foreign
Currency - - - 12415 - - - 12,415
assets
Foreign
Curiency 3,587 . . = - - 3,588
habilfies
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabililies as at March 31 , 2018

. Over 1 month Over 2 months | Over 3 months Over 6 manths Overlyear& | Over3years &

Particulars [ Upto 30131 days upto 2 months upto 3 manths upto & months uplto 1 year _upto 3 years upto 5 years Over 5 years Total
Deposits . = . -
Advances 452,033 244,595 157.140 262,761 168,537 135,799 1,420,866
Invesiments . . . - 5 o 0
Barrowangs * 422,883 4,389 128,085 153,848 190.042 55,223 31,000 70,000 1,125,480
Foreign
Currancy - 4,057 - 4,057
assels
Foreign
Currency 933 1812 - 2.746
habilities

*Borrowings includes Foreign currency loan.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

58.11. Exposure to Real Estate

Categor As at March 31, | Asat Muarch 38,
S 2019 2018

a) [Direct Exposure
(i)  Residentiat Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that B
is or will e accupied by the horrower or that is rented Nit il
(ii) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates
(office buildings, retail space. multi-purpose commercial
premises, multi-family residentjal buildings. malii-tenanted

Nil Nil
commercial premises, industrial or warchouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construetion, cte.). Exposure
Investments in Mongage Backed Securities {MBS) and other
{iii) securitized exposures -
i Residential Nil Nil
h. Commercial real Estate Nil Nil

58.12. Exposure to Capital Market

As at March 31, | Asat Mareh M,
Particolurs 2019 2018
(i) [directinvestment in cquity shares. convertible bonds, converlible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus off Nit Nil
which is not exclusively invested in corporale dehr;
(it} ladvances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including 1PO)s / Mil Nil
ESOPs). canvertible bonds, convertible debentures. and units of
Ginfadvances tor any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds
ar convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds il il
are tlaken as primary securiy:
tiviladvances for any viher purposes 1o the extent secured by the
collateral seeurity of shares or convertible bonds or comseriible Nil Nil
debentures or units of equity onented mutual funds ie., where the
I¥3 |secured and unsecured advinees o stockbrokers and auarantees )
issued on hehalf of stockbrokers and markel makers: Nil Nil
tvillloans sanctioned corparates against te security of shares / boads /
debentures or ather securities oron clean basis for mecting Nil Nil
prannoter's coniribution to (he equity of new companies in
vii|bridee loans o cimpanies against expected eyguity lows / issues, N Nil
taifall exposures W Venture Capitad Funds (both registered and . )
unregistered) il il
Total Exposure to Capital Market Nil Nil
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

58.13. Details of financing of parent company products

The company has not financed an

y of the products of its parent company during the
financial year 2018-2019.

58.14. Details of Sin

gle Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the
NBFC

The compan

y has not exceeded the Prudential exposure limits during the year ended 31
March 2019

58.15. Miscellaneous
58.15.1. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company has also obtained registration from the following regulators apart from RBI.

Registration Authaority Registration No.
Cerificate of Incorporatein under Companies Act 1956 U65999DL 1998PTC093849
Insurance Regulatory and Developmeni Authority of India CAQQ7S

NBFC Registeration 14.01328

58.15.2. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

No penalties have been imposed by any regulators during financial year 2018-2019.

58.15.3. Related Party Transactions

For related parly transaction refer note no.41.

$8.15.4. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
The short-term debt rating of the com
rating is AAA / Stable by CRISIL and
financial year 2018-2019.

pany is A1+ by CRISIL and ICRA. Long-term debt
ICRA. There is no change in the rating during

58.15.5. Revenue Recognition

There is no circumstance in which revenue recognilion has been postponed pending the
resolution of significant uncerainties,
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59.1.

59.2,

59.3.

59.4.

SBI CARD AND PAYAIENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

(Figures in Rupees lakhs,
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

Additional Disclosures

Provisions and Contingencies

unless otherwise stated)

Brealk up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under

Asat March 31 | Asat March 31
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 2019 2018
Provision towards stage 3 assets 30.013.24 27.774.02
Provision made towards Income Tax 8,070.52 26,230.37
Provision for Long Service Awards 178.79 15412
Provision for reward points redemption 43.884.08 11,626.36
Proviston lor Gratuity 190,53 646,00
Provision for Compensated absences 498.42 468.00
Provision for Bonus & Incentive Payable 2.038.10 [,287.72
Provision for Other Expenses* 799929 1,103.77
Provision for Other taxes [1,946.91 -
Provision for stage | and stage 2 assets 31,643.35 24.651.94
* Includes accrued expenses for which services/goods received but the i

Draw Down from reserves

nvoices are awaited,

There is no draw down from the reserves during the financial vear ended 315 March 2019,

Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Advances

Particulars

As at March 31,
2019

As at Mareh 31,
2018

Total Advances 1o twenty largest borrowers*
Percentage of Advances 1o twenty |

argest borrowers to Total
Advances ol the NBFC

20,051.78

1414

25,695.06

17674

*In cases of corporate advances the
individual account fevel under the same group.

Concentration of Exposures

amount of total advances has been taken

At group level and not at an

Particulars

Asat March 31,

As at March 3 L,

2019 2018
Total Exposure twenty largest borrowers/eustomers® 3359y 42230
Percentage of Exposures 1o fwenty largest borrowers/eustomers
1o Total Exposures of the NBFC on horrowers/customers (.316% 0.6y

*In case of Corporate Card
Corporate in total.
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*The exposure here denot

59.5. Concentration of NPAs

es the total credit card limit against the top twenty borrowers.

Particulars As at March 3L, | Asat March 3,
2019 2018
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 36.26 50.34
59.6. Sector wise NPAs
S1 No. Sector %Alzll;z:)c‘:: lt:: ;rh{:l: l As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
— 2019 2018
1 JAgriculture & allied activities
2 IMSME
Corporate borrowers - Credit
3 |Cards* 0.04% 13.01 7.33
4 Services
5 Unsceured personal loans
6 Auto loans
(ther personal loans - Credit
7 |Cards 244 45,282 4],242

*In case of Corporate Cards, the NPA inc

corporate in tolal. % of NPA is for FY 201

59.7.

Movement of NPAs

udes all the credit cards exposure to that

8-19,

(¢l Reductions during the year
{d)  Closing balance

() Movement of NPAs (New)
{2} Opening halanee

{28.250,12)
43.294 89

Particulacs As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2019 2018
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) (1L.85%% .96
Muovement of NPAs (Gross)
() Opening balanee 41.249.69 24.090.22
(b} Additions during the year 32.295.62 3346207

(16.302.60)
41.249.09

13.475.67 173324
(b)  Additions during the year HLY8L.16 11.025.06
(¢} Reductions during (he yeuar (9.275.22) (5.282.63)
(dy Closing halance 15.181.61 13.475.07
o Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding
1Y provisions on standand asseis)
() Opening balance 27.71002 16.356.99
) Provisions made during the year 2131445 22437010
Ceb Write-oft / write-back of excess 1897519 101097
(i Closing balance 311328 27.774.02
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59.8. Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Venture

s and Subsidiaries abroad)
There is no overseas asset as at 31 March 2019,
59.9. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

There is no off-balan

ce sheet SPVs sponsared by the company during the year ended a
March 2019,

39.10. Disclosures of Customers Complaints

S0 Particulars Asat March 31, | As at Macech 31,
2019 2018

(1) |No. of complaints pending at the beginning of ihe year 407 282

(b} |No. or complaints received during the year 12407 16.896

(e} INo. of compluints redressed during the year 12,521 16,771

(d) [No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 103 407

For S. Ramanand Aiyar & Ca.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

SBI Card and Payment Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 000990N

Managing Director & CEQ g fr\“*"'/

DIN: 080243 3

R. Balasubramanian
Partner

Membership No.: 080432 DIN: pS) 6 291°
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